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AGENDA
Committee

-

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time

-

Thursday, 14 March 2019 at 6.30 pm

Venue

-

Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road,
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:
Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), D Ashby, J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis,
P C Foyster, A Harrison and M D Seymour
Quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn off mobile telephones

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE
Date: 6 March 2019

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Page 1

AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE
TIME
6.30 pm

1.

Apologies for absence.

6.31 pm

2.

Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room
without participating in any discussion or making a
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation).

6.32 pm

3.

Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the
meeting held on 17 January 2019 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 5 14)

6.35 pm

4.

Quarter 3 2018-19 Risk Report - To provide an update to
the Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director Strategy
and Governance enclosed).

(Pages 15
- 30)

6.45 pm

5.

External Audit Plan - To consider the Audit Plan of the
External Auditor, Ernst and Young (copy enclosed).

(Pages 31
- 70)

6.55 pm

6.

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity - To examine
the progress made between 7 January 2019 and 4
March 2019 in relation to the completion of the Annual
Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 (report of the Head of
Internal Audit enclosed).

(Pages 71
- 92)

7.05 pm

7.

Follow up report on Internal Audit recommendations - To
provide members with the position on progress made by
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit
recommendations as at 28 February 2019 (report of the
Head of Internal Audit enclosed).

(Pages 93
- 104)

7.20 pm

8.

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 - To
provide an overview of the stages followed prior to the
formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for
2019/20 to 2021/22, and the Annual Internal Audit Plan
for 2019/20 (report of the Head of Internal Audit
enclosed).

(Pages
105 - 132)

7.30 pm

9.

Financial Statements 2018/19 - Accounting Policies - To
review and agree the Accounting Policies for inclusion in
the Financial Statements 2018/19 (report of the
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages
133 - 152)
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7.40 pm

10.

Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

7.45 pm

11.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent.
NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by
reason of special circumstances, which
shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s)
should be considered as a matter of
urgency.
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(Pages
153 - 160)
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Agenda Item 3.

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 17 January
2019 at 4.30 pm.
PRESENT
G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)
D Ashby

A Harrison

M D Seymour

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis
and P C Foyster and the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151).
In Attendance: E Hodds (Head of Internal Audit), F Haywood (Internal Audit
Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services), A Riglar (Manager - Government and
Public Sector, UK&I Assurance - Ernst & Young), the Strategic Finance and
Compliance Manager, the Head of Finance (CPBS), the Place Manager, the
Executive Manager Property and Development, the Democratic Services Officer and
Councillor P E Coupland.
Action By

30.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

31.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit
Committee held on 18 October 2018 were signed by the
Chairman as a correct record.

32.

EXTERNAL AUDIT - LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT
COMMITTEE BRIEFING (QUARTER 4)
Consideration was given to Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter 4), produced by the Authority’s new external
auditor, Ernst and Young.
The briefing report covered issues which could have an impact on
the organisation, the Local Government sector, and the audits
that Ernst and Young undertook. The briefings were produced by
the public sector audit specialists within Ernst and Young’s
national Government and Public Sector team. The briefings
brought together not only technical issues relevant to the Local
Government sector, but wider matters of potential interest to the
Committee and the Authority. The final page of the report
suggested key questions that the Audit Committee should
consider, and there was also a section providing links for further
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information on the issues raised within the report.
The Committee considered the report and the following points
were made:





Members commented that the report was informative, useful,
clear and very well presented.
Members were advised that the report was produced on a
quarterly basis and that it would be included within the
Committee’s future agendas where if fitted into future meeting
dates.
There were no issues of real concern within the report – with
regard to the Key Questions detailed at the end of the report,
these were areas that were usually considered by the
Committee anyway.

AGREED:
That the report be noted.
33.

GRANT CLAIMS 2017/18
Consideration was given the certification of claims and returns
annual report 2017/18, provided by the Authority’s outgoing
external auditor, KPMG.
Public Sector Audit Appointments required their external auditor
to prepare an annual report on the claims and returns certified for
each audited body. The letter was KPMG’s annual report for the
certification work it had undertaken for 2017/18. Certification
work was undertaken on only one claim or return, the Housing
Benefit Subsidy claim. The certified value of the claim was £17
million, and the work was completed and the claim was certified
on 12 November 2018.
The certification work on Housing Subsidy Benefit claim included:






Agreeing standard rates, such as for allowances and benefit
incomes, to the DWP Circular communicating the value of
each rate for the year;
Sample testing of benefit claims to confirm that the entitlement
had been correctly calculated and was supported by
appropriate evidence;
Undertaking an analytical review of the claim form considering
year-on-year variances and key ratios;
Confirming that the subsidy claim had been prepared using
the correct benefits system version; and
Completing testing in relation to modified schemes payments,
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uncashed cheques and verifying the accurate completion of
the claim form.
The certification work identified a number of errors in the original
claim. Where the error could be quantified by testing 100% of the
population of potentially affected cases the claim could be
amended. Where the population was too large for 100% testing
to be practical, a qualification letter was required to explain what
the auditor had found. The errors that KPMG found and the way
they were dealt with were as follows:
A small number of errors were found in the Rent Rebates and
Rent Allowance sample testing, which needed to be reported as
the population was too large for 100% testing. They related to the
following:





Incorrect processing of pension payments;
Incorrect calculation of earnings;
Incorrect processing childcare costs; and
Incorrect overpayment classification.

Consequently, no recommendations to the Authority had been
made to improve its claims completion process. There were no
recommendations made last year and there were no further
matters to report regarding the certification work.
Members were advised that KPMG would continue to be the
auditor for the subsidy.
With regard to the qualifying letter and the bullet points detailed,
members asked whether these were errors, or whether they
related to procedure. Officers were not able to provide this
information but would liaise with the Revenues and Benefits
Manager and provided members with an answer in due course.
There were no recommendations from KPMG which would
indicate that they were one-off errors.
AGREED:
That the certification of claims and returns annual report 2017/18,
provided by KPMG be noted.
34.

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal
Audit which examined the progress made between 1 October
2018 and 7 January 2019 in relation to the completion of the
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.
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The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on
progress made against the annual internal audit plan. The report
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal
audit activity.
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan,
including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The
frequency of reporting was to each meeting. To comply with
requirements, the report identified:





Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
Performance measures.

The Committee was advised that details of progress made in
delivering the agreed audit work, and the outcomes arising from
the auditor’s work was detailed within the report.
During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit Services
had issued four final reports – Food, Health and Safety
(Reasonable Assurance); Democratic Services (Reasonable
Assurance); Cyber Security (Reasonable Assurance); and
Software Licencing (Reasonable Assurance).
Members considering the information and the following issues
were raised:






Concern was raised that, as part of the audit of Democratic
Services, there were issues with regard to member expenses
and allowances not being published.
o Officers responded that management had taken on
board the areas that needed to be addressed, and
had taken them forward positively.
Members responded that transparency was important and that
reasons why these issues had occurred was required.
o Officers responded that this would be taken back to
the department and answers would be fed back to
the Committee.
With regard to cyber security and the requirement for money
to buy core network equipment which had reached the end of
its life, this was fundamental to how the Authority worked –
why had this issue not been raised in previous reports, and
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how were strategic and operational risks defined?
o The auditor advised that this issue had to progress
through the risk management process and be
reported upwards. The risk register would be
presented to the meeting of the Committee in March
where members would have the opportunity to ask
questions.
AGREED:
That the report be noted.
35.

FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal
Audit which provided members with the position on the progress
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit
recommendations as at 30 November 2018.
In 2017/18, a total of 85 recommendations had been raised by
both internal audit providers. Of those, 63 had been implemented
by management, 15 were outstanding (7 urgent, 7 important and
1 needing attention). A total of 7 recommendations (4 urgent and
3 important) were not yet due. The management responses in
relation to the outstanding urgent and important outstanding
recommendations could be seen in Appendix 2 of the report. In
addition, 22 advisory points were raised for CPBS audits and
whilst these were not formal recommendations to be followed up,
it was expected that these would be addressed in due course and
that progress would be reviewed.
Members were updated on progress with the limited and no
assurance conclusions:






The internal audit review of Asset Management concluded
with a limited assurance, 2 urgent recommendations had been
addressed by management however, 5 recommendations
including 3 of urgent priority remained overdue.
The internal audit review of the Revenues Service concluded
with a limited assurance and a total of 5 recommendations
were raised, 4 of which were now complete and 1 urgent
recommendation was now overdue. The deadline had been
further extended until 31 January 2019.
The internal audit review of the Payroll service concluded in a
limited assurance and a total of 7 recommendations were
raised, 4 of which were now complete, 2 urgent
recommendations were not yet due, and a revised deadline for
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the remaining urgent recommendation had been agreed of 31
March 2019.
The internal audit review of the Accounts Receivable service
concluded with no assurance and a total of 10
recommendations were raised, with 5 of these now confirmed
as complete. One urgent recommendation was not yet due,
and 2 urgent recommendations were now overdue. Two
important recommendations were now overdue and further
extensions had been agreed.

The Place Manager and the Executive Manager Property and
Development provided the following information with regard to
Asset Management










Update on audit recommendations – there were 5
recommendations outstanding, progress was much slower
than officers would want however, some progress was being
made.
Asset Management was a new department that had arisen
from the Place Review. A team was in place, there were some
common skills however the skills around commercial estate
were not held by the current team – proposals were being
worked on to acquire additional resource to ensure that the
audit actions could be undertaken. Members were advised
however that it was difficult to find staff with these skills as it
was a very challenging market.
Members were advised that the Executive Manager Property
and Development had a lot of experience in property
development and estate management.
The Authority held around 57 units – start ups were good, but
growing these on was an issue.
The Authority needed to look at how it could manage its estate
better. The Executive Manager Property and Development
and the Place Manager were identifying the skill-sets that were
required and where support was needed. A new Asset
Management Plan was also required.
It was necessary to upskill and mentor the team. Work had
started in September 2018 and this was beginning to bear fruit
however, progress was difficult – it was challenging to identify
staff with Estate Management skills.

The Place Manager commented that officers could attend the next CM
meeting of the Committee to provide a stronger update with
significant progress on audit recommendations.
Members raised the following issues:


Did the Authority own its own units, and was it getting a good
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return on its assets?
o Officers responded that there was full occupancy and
units were well used. The Authority was getting a good
return, but it could be better. Consideration needed to
be given to what the offer was. It was important to have
a commercial landlord in place, to have the correct
policies and the correct tenants in the correct units.
Members commented that it was important for the Authority as
a landlord to help businesses to move into larger, more
appropriate locations where required.

The Head of Finance provided the following updates with regard
to Compass Point Business Services:






Within Appendix 2, there were 3 recommendations relating to
the authorisation matrix. There had been a number of issues
including IT problems and officers not using the system as
required. Officers were working with managers to resolve this
and find the best way forward. Finance was setting up
information on managers’ behalf. It was hoped that these
issues would be resolved by March.
Review of billing codes – this had been completed for South
Holland District Council.
VAT e-learning modules – this had now been completed.
Pay.Net – There had been issues with miscellaneous income.
There had been discussions with the software company
regarding liability for correcting the system and the company
was now in the process of providing these corrections.

AGREED:
That the report be noted.
36.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGIES
2019/20.
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Commercialisation which provided pre-decision scrutiny to the
strategy being proposed.
CIPFA defined Treasury Management as: ‘The management of
the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks’.
The Council was required to set out its Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and
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Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year. These
outlined the Council’s strategy for borrowing and its policies for
managing its investments and for giving priority to the security
and liquidity of those investments. The Authority’s strategy
statements for 2019/20 were attached at Appendix B to the report.
The strategy statements covered:
















Reporting requirements
Capital prudential indicators 2019/20 to 2022/23
The borrowing requirement
The MRP policy
The use of the Council’s resources and the investment
position
Prudential and Treasury Indicators
Treasury limits in force which would limit the treasury risk and
activities of the Council
Prospects for interest rates
The borrowing strategy
Policy on borrowing in advance of need
Debt rescheduling
The investment policy
Creditworthiness policy
Country limits
Investment strategy

Members considered the information within the report, which was
explained in further detail by the Strategic Finance and
Compliance Manager and the Head of Finance (CPBS).
There was some discussion on the issue of placing money with
other authorities, and members were reminded that the Finance
Manager Treasury had provided some information at the last
meeting into how lending to local authorities was sometimes safer
than other institutions. It was agreed that further research on
lending to other authorities should be undertaken.
AGREED:
That the report be noted.
37.

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK
PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager –
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) which set out the Work
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee, as set out
in Appendix A within the report.
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AGREED:
That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted.
38.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT.
There were none.

(The meeting ended at 6.00 pm)
(End of minutes)
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Agenda Item 4.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To:

Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday 14th March 2019

Author:

Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject:

Quarter 3 Risk Report

Purpose:

To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the
Council’s identified strategic risks

Recommendation(s):
1)

To note the content of the report

2)

To add a strategic risk to the register ‘The impact on the Council of emerging local
and national policy, including Brexit’

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The report presents the status of the Council’s 15 identified strategic risks as of the end
of quarter 3 18/19

1.2

Strategic risks are captured on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the
Executive Management Team (EMT) and reviewed by EMT quarterly. In addition,
risks are reviewed monthly at the internal Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired
by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.3

Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with responsible members of the
Executive Management Team. The strategic risk register includes 15 strategic risks
(see Appendix A). These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic
direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that
affect discreet service areas.

1.4

By their nature, strategic risks have been identified as having the potential to cause
organisation wide impact and will often cover a number of key services and
departments.

1.5

The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix and is comparable
with best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a
comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The
matrix results in a numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring
with the likelihood of it happening.

1.6

The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix and is comparable
with best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a
comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The
matrix results in a numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring
with the likelihood of it happening.
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1.7

Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating
High
Medium
Low

1.8

Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks
currently reported at each score

1.9

There are 15 strategic risks included within the Q3 18/19 Risk Report, the same
number as at the end of Quarter 2.
Risks are made up of the following Level of identified risk
High
Medium
Low

Q3 18/19
0
13
2

Q2 18/19
0
13
2

Although the number or risks have remained static in each category, it is should be
noted that there has been some positive movement within. It should also been seen
as a positive that for the third consecutive month there have been no risks identified
as high.
Of those considered a medium risk, there has been a positive movement for the
following.
The risk relating to the Council’s implementation of the GDPR regulations has
reduced as a result of the successful completion of the Privacy Notices and
development of the Asset Registers. In addition a project plan to monitor performance
has been completed and ‘reasonable assurance’ has been received following an
internal audit.
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There has been a reduction in the risk relating to staff recruitment and retention.
Quarter 3 saw the lowest number of officers leaving the council in a single quarter
with only 3 leaving in this time. In addition, staff recruitment continues to improve
across all areas of the Council. This can be attributed to the way in which we are both
advertising our vacant roles and the packages which we are able to offer.
The risk relating to the Council’s ability to deliver both the financial and non-financial
outcomes of Welland Homes business plan has been reduced. This is on the basis
that the plan is now halfway through its lifespan and therefore the likelihood of nondelivery is reduced.
The risk which monitors the Council’s reliance on maximising income from trading
opportunities has also been reduced within the last quarter. This is owing to the
growing presence of EHT&C which continues to develop and establish a brand within
the market place.
The remaining risks although reviewed remain static from Q2; these include.
The Councils medium term financial plan including the uncertainty surrounding the
future of the Governments Settlement Funding will remain static until the outcome of
the government’s reviews are known and understood.
The risk relating to the impact on the Council of the Homelessness Reduction Act
remains static. Although numbers accessing the Housing Service are now at a more
consistent level, officers still require additional training in order to be in a position to
provide the necessary support on a larger scale. It is anticipated that we will see a
reduction of this risk in Quarter 4.
The risk of a critical breach of ICT security remains static. The service are constantly
ensuring that the most current anti-virus and malware software is in place in addition
to ongoing user education and support. The recent introduction of a dedicated
Security Analyst has helped CPBS develop new standards and processes to combat
increasing threats from cyber-attacks.
2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is proposed that a new Strategic Risk is added to the Councils Strategic Risk
Register, this being – ‘The impact on the Council of emerging local and national
policy, including Brexit’

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

This recommendation is proposed so that the Council can use its risk matrix to
formally measure and monitor the impact of any new policy including any impact
which Brexit may have on South Holland District Council.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in
accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy.
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5.0
5.1

IMPLICATIONS
Constitution & Legal
The report is made within the terms of reference of the Governance and Audit
Committee.

5.2

Corporate Priorities
The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3

Financial
The report contains information on Council’s financial risks which does convey
some information relating to financial matters.

5.4

Reputation
Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose
of this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5

Risk Management
Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect
Council interests.

5.6

Staffing
The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

No Wards or Communities are affected

7.0

ACRONYMS

PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority

Background papers:- None
Background papers:- None
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement & Performance
Manager
07870835233
ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
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Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post:
Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement Manager
Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Quarter 3 Risk Register
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SHDC Strategic Risk Report inc Targets

Title

Description

Medium
Term
Financial
Plan Not
Delivered

The Medium Term
Financial Plan
includes a balanced
position which is
dependant on delivery
of further savings
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Uncertainty
over future
government
funding
settlement

Government funding
reductions due to a
weakening of the
economy may be
experienced during
the period of the
MTFP

Business rate
retention policy
Impact of
changes leave the
business
council exposed to
rate appeals
risks on collection and
baseline income.

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

12

There are a number of
controls in place to
track delivery including
finance board,
12
Performance, Risk &
Audit Board & EMT.
PI's are tracking
variance from plan

12

4yr MTFP sets out
programme to be free
of reliance on RSG by
2019. Setting
investment funds,
commercial property
and growth to ensure
continued income.
Star chamber
exercises and
constant forward
looking reviews are
now underway.

20

Financial provision
has been made to
cover the risk of
current appeals,
collection rates and
growth

12

12

Impact

4

4

3

Likelihood

3

3

4

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

3

2

2

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note

2

Risk and Likelihood
remain the same until
the outcome of future
government settlement
and business rates
review.

2

Risk and Likelihood
remain the same as
there has been no
further indication as to
the outcome of the
funding settlement

2

We are in the same
position as last quarter
on this risk as it remains
slightly elevated this
quarter due to the
appeal that has been
lodged by NHS services

Title

Description

Original
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Current Risk
Score

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
who want to see a
reduction in the amount
of business rates they
have to pay ongoing
and still progressing.
Once complete the
impact of this risk will
be evaluated once the
decision has been
made.
The risk continues to be
reviewed on an ongoing
basis by the Housing
Options Manager. The
numbers of applicants
remains consistent - the
shortfalls in team
capacity have now been
addressed with
recruitment complete
for all posts.

•

Page 22

The implementation
of the new act places
additional burdens on
SHDC which may
mean a reduced
ability within the
service to adhere to
the act due to an
unpredictable
increase of persons
approaching the
Impact of
housing options
Homelessne
service. Capacity may
ss Reduction
be impacted by
Act
increased volumes of
homeless
applications,
increased time
needed to manage
each case in order to
fulfil the requirements
of the new legislation
and risk that the
expansion of the duty
could lead to a

12

Implementation
of specialist Jigsaw
Software to case
manage under
provisions of HRA
2017
•
Increase in
establishment of
Housing Options
Officer in SHDC as
part of Place Review
•
Additional
12
experienced
temporary staff from
February 2018 to
triage cases
•
Increase of
admin support to
Housing Options
Team to better utilise
specialist staff to focus
on complex cases
•
Training in new
duties to be ongoing

3

4

3

2

The processes have
been updated and the
speed in handling cases
through these is
improving as front line
operational staff have
adapted and built the
appropriate networks.
The knowledge base
required for the role is
in-depth and therefore
training is on-going for
the team. The risk level

Title

Description

Original
Score

serious shortfall in
available temporary
housing options to
accommodate
homeless individuals
and families

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

(initial joint
SHDC/BDC training
held in January 2018)
•
Utilisation of
£62k New Burdens
funding
•
Identification of
options within SHDC
stock
•
Identification of
private sector options
within both districts
•
Work with
partners to open other
potential options
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Attacks are
happening with
increasing frequency
at present. Ransom
Critical
and theft specialists
breach of
are targeting banking
ICT security details and personal
information, as with
all other government
systems and private
companies

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

25

There is a
comprehensive suite
of protection
measures in place
including email
filtering, web filtering,
antivirus and windows
updates which help to
protect from viruses

Latest Note
has not changed.

10

5

2

CPBS on behalf of its
clients continues its
vigilance. In order to
keep abreast of the
latest threats, ICT
subscribe to various
Security related
bulletins, such as SANS
/ CESG / WARP.
4

2
The recent introduction
of a dedicated Security
Analyst role has helped
CPBS develop new
standards and
processes to combat
the increasing threats
from cyber attacks. The
recent swift PSN

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
certification of the
Council has
demonstrated the
benefits of this role.
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Whilst a security breach
will always be a
possibility is today's
environment, SHDC
have a level of defence
in depth which operates
levels of security from
the perimeter to the end
user devices. It should
be confident of the
considerable
investment and
enhancements made in
this area over previous
years. The impact of
any such breach will
always remain
high/critical due to the
possible disruption to
statutory services.

Impact of
County
Council
Budget
Reductions

Impact of County
Council Budget
Reductions. This will
potentially impact on
resident wellbeing.

9

Ensure that Place
directorate are
involved early in
conversations to
represent the council
and its residents

9

3

3

2

2

No change to risk or
likelihood due to budget
reductions from county
council being linked to
business rates review
and future government
settlement. Once further
is known about the
outcome of these
issues, risk and

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
likelihood can be
altered accordingly

16
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With the
implementation of the
General Data
Protection Regulation,
General Data which replaces the
Protection
Data Protection
Regulation
Action of 1998, there
Implementati is a risk that the
on
council will not
manage its data
appropriately and in
line with the new
regulations.

Contracts
Monitoring

This risk covers the
councils monitoring of
contracts with
external partners to
ensure arrangements
are financially secure
and performing

16

Monthly meetings of
the statutory
information group
have highlighted areas
which need to be
addressed and
training was delivered
in September for
managers and
proposed service Data
Protection leads.

.
Regular
monitoring of contracts
.
Regular
communication with
external partners and
stakeholders
Keep up to date with
external changes with
partners

9

9

3

3

3

3

2

2

2

3

Impact reduced slightly
following on from the
completion of team
privacy notices and
Information Asset
Registers. A Project
Plan has been created
and is being followed.
‘Reasonable
Assurance’ has been
received through Audit.
Additional Terms and
Conditions for
contractual obligations
are being forwarded to
suppliers.
The status for this risk
remains the same,
there have been no
incidents to note with
existing contracted
suppliers or service
providers which the
team continues to
monitor closely.
In addition the service
continues to maintain a
watching brief in
relation to Brexit
developments and what
impact this may have
on our contracted

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
supplier supply chains.
Regular meetings are
being held with the
Service head at CPBS
between both the client
lead and service
manager, to manage
any performance
issues.
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CPBS
Failure to
deliver core
services

CPBS Failure to
deliver core services HR/IT/Finance/Reven
ues & Benefits

12

Number of
Governance
processes in place
including monitoring of
performance in
performance, risk and
audit baord. CPBS
also has its own board
with governance.

Both a corporate and
service specific SLA's
have been agreed for
2019-20. Which aligns
with the new corporate
plan
8

4

2

2

2

Reviewed performance
standards will be
agreed and signed off
for the coming year to
align with the corporate
plan.
Most elements of the
service is functional,
however there have
been a number of audit
reports with some
assurance concerns,
we continue to monitor
this and address any
issues that arise.
There is current two

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
senior management
post vacant, i.e. HR and
finance, but recruitment
is well advanced.

Failure to
maximise
trading
opportunitie
s

Failure to maximise
trading opportunities
could result in lack of
commercial
exploitation of assets
or income from
trading arms

Page 27

Staff
recruitment
and
retention at
all levels
within the
organisation

Staff recruitment and
retention issues could
undermine the
effectiveness of the
organisations though
loss of experience
and knowledge

Failure to
effectively
implement
corporate
business
continuity
plan

Failure could lead to
an impact on delivery
of services, loss of IT
systems, ineffective
communication or a
failure to provide
suitable premises

9

Governance is in
place for MTFP
through EMT, finance
board and
Performance Risk and
Audit Board which
monitor the work
towards maximising
trading
opportunities

15

The mitigation for key
senior posts that are
vacant or serving their
notice period will be to
start recruitment and
find suitable interim
cover.

4

Working jointly with
County to have
business continuity
post. Each team has a
plan reviewed
annually

6

6

6

3

3

3

2

2

2

2

2

3

2

EHTC are in an
reasonable position in
relation to the risk and
therefore this risk has
been reduced both in
likelihood and impact
for this quarter, financial
summary will be
analysed at the end of
Q4 and risk will be
reviewed accordingly.

2

There were only 3
leavers for Q3 and the
council currently has
the lowest turnover rate
we have seen.
Recruitment continues
to perform well and
there are currently no
issues identified in
relation to recruitment
and retention

1

As previously
confirmed, all business
continuety plans and
emergency plans for
SHDC have been
reviewed by each
service. These have
been reviewed by the

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note
Emergency PLanning
Officer to ensure they
can be effectively
implemented if
necessary and will then
be tabled/signed off at
the Emergency
Planning Board later
this month. Further
training is still to be
identified and this is
likely to be carried out
early spring by the LRF.
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Failure to deliver
financial & nonfinancial outcomes of
the approved
Failure to
business plan has
deliver
implication in areas
financial &
which include Legal,
non-financial
reputational and
outcomes of
Financial. Risk also
the approved
refers to capacity and
Welland
expertise in the
Homes
organsation to deliver
business
the housing
plan
development
requirement for both
the HRA and Welland
Homes.

8

Mitigations as follows;
• Revised governance
including strengthened
terms of reference.
• Improved
communication on
Council policies to the
WH Board.
• Increased
operational capability
and capacity within
Council to support
future programmes
and WH Board of
Directors.
• Permanent Housing
Development
programme manager
• Positive Audit
• Established
methodology for

6

3

2

2

2

Council is currently
halfway through
business plan. No
immediate change to
risk and likelihood of
failure to deliver.

Title

Description

Original
Score

Current Risk
Score

Controls/ Mitigation

Impact

Likelihood

Trend
Target
(last qtr) Impact

Target
Likelihood

Latest Note

assessing schemes

Failure to
deliver the
council's
Corporate
Priorities

Would lead to missed
targets and failure to
deliver objectives and
may result in the
Council suffering
reputational damage
and a failure to deliver
priorities to residents.

4

Corporate Delivery
Plan sets out how to
acheive corporate plan
and this is under
pinned by individual
service plans and
these are monitored at
Perfromance, Risk &
Audit Board monthly

4

2

2

2

3

The Joint Committee
has been required to
carry out a further
consultation on two
minor amendments to
the Plan and the
Sustainability Appraisal
at the request of the
Inspectors. This
consultation closes on
14th January. The
Inspectors report is
expected shortly
thereafter and as such,
the risk rating remains
unchanged at this time.
Once the Inspectors
report is in hand then
this should decrease
the risk and likelihood
even further.
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2

The CIP team are
currently working with
all services to ensure
that the councils
corporate priorities are
achieved and measured
against the corporate
plan, any areas within
the corporate priorities
that are not achieved
will be raised
accordingly.

Failure to deliver
Local Plan and its
Delivery Plan Failure to
reputational and
deliver Local
financial risk due to
Plan and its
possible Secretary of
Delivery
State intervention.
Plan
there is also a new
risk emerging due to
New Homes Bonus.

8

Dedicated senior
officer and EMT
support to deliver the
local plan

3

3

1

4
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South Holland District
Council
Audit Plan
Year ended 31 March 2019
14 March 2019
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Agenda Item 5.

Governance and Audit Committee Members
South Holland District Council
Council Offices
Priory Road
Spalding
LIncolnshire
PE11 2 XE

14 March 2019

Dear Members
2018/19 Audit Plan
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We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Governance and Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.
This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governance and Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 14 March 2019, as well as understand whether there are other ma tters which you
consider may influence our audit.
Yours faithfully

Mark Hodgson
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

2
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Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/auditquality/statement-of-responsibilities/). The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council for this report
or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

3
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit
01 strategy
01
4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Governance and Audit
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus
Misstatements due to fraud or error
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Incorrect capitalisation of revenue
expenditure

Valuation of Land and Buildings
Materiality

Pension Liability Valuation

Implementation of new accounting
standards

Risk identified

Details

Fraud risk

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Fraud risk

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the
risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition.
We focus on the risk of incorrect capitalisation of revenue expenditure on Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE), given the extent of the Council’s capital programme. This also links to the
risk above as a specific area susceptible to manipulation by management.

Inherent risk

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP)
represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are estimates which are subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end
balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Inherent risk

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make
extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by Lincolnshire County Council.
The Council’s pension fund liability (£37.782 million as at 31 March 2018) is a material
estimated balance and the Code requires that the liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet.

Inherent risk

The 2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting confirms that Local
Government will implement International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 9 – Financial
Instruments and IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Council needs to
assess and evaluate the implications of these new standards on the 2018/19 accounts.

5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
Materiality
Planning
materiality

£1.1m

Single Entity (the Council) Materiality has been set at £1.052 million, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on
provision of services. Group Materiality has been set at £1.054 million.

Performance
materiality

£0.79m

Performance materiality has been set at £0.790 million, which represents 75% of materiality. Group Performance
materiality has been set at £0.791 million, on the same basis.
Audit
differences

£53,000
Page 36

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow
statement, collection fund and group accounts) greater than £53,000. Other misstatements
identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Governance and
Audit Committee.

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:
▪ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of South Holland District Council give a true and fair view of the fina ncial position as at 31 March 2019 and
of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
▪ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.
Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and a uditing standards.
When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
The quality of systems and processes;
Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.
6
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02 Audit risks

01
7

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks
We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error *
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What is the risk?

What will we do?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures
including:
• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages;
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in
place to address those risks;
• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance
of management’s processes over fraud;
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed
to address the risk of fraud;
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks
of fraud; and
• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments
in the preparation of the financial statements and evaluating the
business rationale for any significant unusual transactions.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
We identify and respond to this fraud risk on
every audit engagement.
One area susceptible to manipulation is the
capitalisation of revenue expenditure on
Property, Plant and Equipment given the extent
of the Council’s capital programme (see below).

8

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
Incorrect capitalisation of
revenue expenditure *
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Financial statement impact

We have identified a risk of
expenditure misstatement due to
fraud or error that could affect the
income and expenditure accounts.

What is the risk?
Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.
As the Council is more focused on its financial
position over medium term, we have considered
the risk of manipulation to be more prevalent in
the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment
given the extent of the Council’s capital
programme (see above).

What will we do?
In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures
including:
• Obtaining an analysis of capital additions in the year, reconciling to the
Fixed Assets Register (FAR), and reviewing the descriptions to identify
whether there are any potential items that could be revenue in nature;
• Performing sample testing on additions to Property, Plant and
Equipment, ensuring that they have been correctly classified as capital
and included at the correct value, to identify any revenue items that
have been inappropriately capitalised; and
• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general
ledger moving expenditure items from revenue codes to capital codes.

We consider the risk applies to
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure and could result in a
misstatement of cost of services
reported in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Statement.

9

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures
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The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and
are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation
charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and
apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in
the balance sheet.

including:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of
the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of
their work;

•
•

The Council will engage an external expert (valuer) who will apply a number
of complex assumptions to these assets. Assets are assessed annually to
identify whether there is any indication of impairment.
As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are
subject to estimation, there is a risk that these assets may be misstated.
ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of experts and assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

•
•
•
•

Sample test key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);
Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued
within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually
for IP. We will also consider whether there are any specific changes occurring to
assets and that these are communicated to the valuer;
Review assets that are not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the
remaining asset base is not materially misstated;
Consider circumstances that require the use of EY valuation specialists to review
any material specialist assets and the underlying assumptions used;
Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent
valuation; and
Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

10

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures
including:
• Liaise with the auditors of Lincolnshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the
information supplied to the actuary in relation to South Holland District Council;

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Lincolnshire County Council.
The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet. At 31 March 2018 this totalled £37.782 million.

•

•

Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans) including the assumptions
they have used by relying on the work of PwC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned
by Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector auditors, and
consider any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and
Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.
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The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the
Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the
calculations on their behalf.
ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus
What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

New accounting standards

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures

The CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting (the Code)
requires the Council to comply with the requirements of two new
accounting standards for 2018/19. These standards are:

including:
• Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact
assessment paper setting out the application of the new standards, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;
• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets;
• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a
performance obligation; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

• IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments
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This new accounting standard will change:
• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.
There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the
2018/19 Code provides guidance on the application of IFRS 9. However,
until further guidance is issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed
there remains some uncertainty on the accounting treatment.

•

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts
The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.
The 2018/19 Code provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and
includes a useful flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG
revenue and how they should be recognised.
The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large
revenue streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government
grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However, where the standard
is relevant, the recognition of revenue will change and new disclosure
requirements introduced.

12
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03 Value for Money Risks

01
V
F
M

13

Value for Money

V
F
M

Background
We are required to consider whether South Holland DIstrict Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money
conclusion.
For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Informed
decision making

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:
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▪
▪
▪

Take informed decisions;
Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.
We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Working with
partners and
third parties

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”
Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level. In 2018/19 this has included consideration of the steps taken by South Holland
District Council to consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and
investment values. Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that Authorities will be
carrying out scenario planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.
Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders. This has not resulted in the identification of any significant risks relevant to our value for money
conclusion.

14
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04 Audit materiality

01
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Audit materiality

Materiality
Materiality

Key definitions

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £1.052 million (Group
at £1.054 million). This represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on
provision of services. It will be reassessed throughout the audit process. The rationale
for this is that user and stakeholder focus is on the management and control of
expenditure and continued service delivery, not on returns on funds invested or the
generation of profit. We have provided supplemental information about audit
materiality in Appendix C.

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.
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Gross expenditure
on provision of services

Component performance materiality range – we determine component
performance materiality as a percentage of Group performance materiality
based on risk and relative size to the Group.

Performance
materiality

£53m

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £0.790
million (Group: £0.791 million) which represents 75% of planning
materiality. We have considered a number of factors such as the number of
errors in the prior year and any significant changes when determining the
percentage of performance materiality.

£0.79m
Planning
materiality

Audit
differences

£1.1m

£53,000
Component
performance
materiality

£0.158m

We request that the Governance and Audit Committee confirm its understanding of,
and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. The same threshold for
misstatements is used for component reporting. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund that
have an effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.
Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the
Governance and Audit Committee, or are important from a qualitative
perspective.
Specific materiality – We have set a materiality of £53,000 for related
party transactions and members allowances and £5,000 for officer’s
remuneration and exit packages disclosures which reflects our
understanding that an amount less than our materiality would influence the
economic decisions of users of the financial statements in relation to this.

16
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05 Scope of our audit

01
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Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy
Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping
Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit
Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).
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We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.
Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.
Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.
2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.
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Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)
Audit Process Overview
Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
•

Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.
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Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Governance and Audit Committee.
Internal audit:
We will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports from any other work completed
in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.
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Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit
Group scoping
Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:
1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, eit her
because of its relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstanc es (qualitative criteria). We
generally assign significant components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.
2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from significant
components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures.
For all other components we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those l ocations. These procedures are detailed
below.
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Scoping by Entity

Scope definitions

Our preliminary audit scopes by number of locations we have adopted are set
out below.

Full scope: locations where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels
assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit.
Procedures performed at full scope locations support an interoffice conclusion on
the reporting package. These may not be sufficient to issue a stand-alone audit
opinion on the local statutory financial statements because of the materiality used
and any additional procedures required to comply with local laws and regulations.

0

A

Full scope audits

0

B

Specific scope audits

0

C

Review scope audits

0

D

Specified procedures

2

E

Other procedures

Specific scope: locations where the audit is limited to specific accounts or
disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk profile
of those accounts.
Review scope: locations where procedures primarily consist of analytical
procedures and inquiries of management. On-site or desk top reviews may be
performed, according to our assessment of risk and the availability of information
centrally.
Specified Procedures: locations where the component team performs procedures
specified by the Group audit team in order to respond to a risk identified.
Other procedures: For those locations that we do not consider material to the
Group financial statements in terms of size relative to the Group and risk, we
perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement
within those locations.
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Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit (continued)
Coverage of expenditure

Key components

We set audit scopes for each reporting unit which, when taken together, enable us
to form an opinion on the group accounts. We take into account the size, risk
profile, changes in the business environment, and other factors when assessing
the level of work to be performed at each reporting unit.

•

Both Welland Homes Ltd and South Holland Local Housing Community
Interest Company are not significant components as determined by their size
and risk.

Based on the group’s prior year results, our scoping is expected to achieve the
following coverage of the group’s expenditure:
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Expenditure

0.3%

of the group’s expenditure will be
covered by other procedures, with
the remainder covered by the
single entity’s audit.

Our audit approach is risk based and therefore the data above on coverage is
provided for your information only.

Details of other procedures
• Our approach to other procedures is as follows:
• Obtain management’s review of actual performance compared to
budget, prior year and KPIs;
• Review of group wide entity level controls;
• Perform analytical review procedures;
• Test consolidation procedures and journals;
• Enquiry of management about unusual transactions;
• Review of management’s reconciliation of local statutory accounts to
the group accounts.
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06 Audit team
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Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy
Audit team structure

Mark Hodgson
Lead Audit Partner
Working together with the Council

Alison Riglar
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Audit Manager

We are working together with officers to identify
continuing improvements in communication and
processes for the 2018/19 audit.
We will continue to keep our audit approach
under review to streamline it where possible.

Rodrique Thomas
Lead Senior

Audit team

The engagement team is led by Mark Hodgson, who has significant public sector audit experience. Mark is supported by Alison Riglar who is responsible for the day-today direction of audit work and is the key point of contact for the Chief Accountant. The day-to-day audit team will be led by Rodrique Thomas as the Lead Senior on
the audit.
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Audit team

Use of specialists
Our approach to the involvement of specialists, and the use of their work.
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

EY Valuations Team, Kier and Wilks, Head and Eve (the Council’s property valuers)

Pensions disclosures

EY Pensions Team, PwC (Consulting Actuary to PSAA) and Hymans Robertson (the Council’s actuary)

Fair Value Investment Measurement

Link Asset Services (the Council’s treasury advisor)

Business rate appeals

Analyse Local (the Council’s management expert)
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Area

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.
We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:
•

Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

•

Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

•

Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

•

Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.
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07 Audit timeline
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Audit timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables
Timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the au dit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Governance and Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Governance
and Audit Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.
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Oct

Nov

Reporting our
independence, risk
assessment, planned
audit approach and the
scope of our audit

Report by exception our
interim work and any
control observations and
progress of our work on
significant risks

Reporting our conclusions on
key judgements and estimates
and confirmation of our
independence

The Annual Audit Letter
will be provided following
completion of our audit
procedures

Audit Plan

Interim Update

Audit Results Report

Annual Audit Letter

Dec
Planning

Jan

Feb

Mar

Walkthroughs

Apr

May

Interim Audit

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Substantive
testing

Planning

Walkthroughs

Interim Audit

Year End Audit

Risk assessment
and setting of
scopes

Walkthrough of key
systems and processes

Controls assessment and
early substantive testing

Work begins on our year end
audit. This is when we will
complete any substantive testing
not completed at interim
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Independence

Introduction
The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate. The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.
Required communications
Planning stage
►
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►

►
►

►

The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;
The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;
The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
Information about the general policies and process
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence;
and
Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply
more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard.

Final stage
►

►
►

►
►

►

►

In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create. We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;
Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is independent and, if applicable, that any
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;
and
An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.
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Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards
We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any. We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non–audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.
Overall Assessment
Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Mark Hodgson, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.
Self interest threats
A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council. Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.

Page 59

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved. At the time of writing,
there are no non-audit services being provided.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you. We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no self interest threats as at the date of this report.
Self review threats
Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.
Management threats
Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council. Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other threats
Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.
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Independence

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2018
Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the hi ghest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
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Appendix A

Fees
The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government.
PSAA has published a scale fee for all relevant bodies. This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the NAO Code.
Planned fee
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

£’s

£’s

£’s

Total Fee – Code work

34,293

34,293

44,537

► The level of risk in relation to the financial statements and VFM
arrangements remains the same;

Total audit fees

34,293

34,293

44,537

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
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All fees exclude VAT

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
unqualified;
► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and
► The Council has an effective control environment.
If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in
advance.
Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.
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Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Governance and Audit Committee.
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Terms of engagement

Confirmation by the Governance and Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
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Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
Audit Plan - March 2019
significant risks identified.
When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of
the engagement team.

Significant findings from
the audit

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Going concern

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking
Expected modifications to the audit report
Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process
Findings and issues regarding the opening balance on initial audits

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Audit Results Report – July 2019
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Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications
Misstatements
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Fraud

What is reported?
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Related parties

•
•
•
•
•
•

Independence

When and where

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Corrected misstatements that are significant
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Enquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee to determine whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity
Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist
A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties Audit Results Report – July 2019
including, when applicable:
Non-disclosure by management
Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
Disagreement over disclosures
Non-compliance with laws and regulations
Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
Audit Plan – March 2019
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Audit Results Report – July 2019
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence.
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Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

•
•

Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Consideration of laws and
regulations

•

Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off
Enquiry of the Governance and Audit Committee into possible instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the Governance and Audit Committee may be aware of

Audit Results Report – July 2019
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External confirmations

•

Internal controls

•

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Group audits

•

An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components
An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components
Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work
Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted
Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit Plan – March 2019
Audit Results Report – July 2019

•

•
•
•
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Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee
(continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required communications

What is reported?

When and where

Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report – July 2019

Auditors report

•
•

Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor’s report
Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Audit Results Report – July 2019

•
•
•

Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed
Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
Any non-audit work

Audit Plan – March 2019
Audit Results Report – July 2019
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Representations

Fee Reporting
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Additional audit information
Other required procedures during the course of the audit
In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.
Our responsibilities required
by auditing standards

•

•
•
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•
•
•

•

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclos ures
made by management.
Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial
statements, including the board’s statement that the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable, the Governance and Audit
Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Governance and Audit Committee and reporting
whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
Maintaining auditor independence.
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Additional audit information (continued)
Purpose and evaluation of materiality
For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.
Materiality determines:
• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.
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The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.
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This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.
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Agenda Item 6.
Report of:

Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

To:

Governance and Audit Committee 14 March 2019

Author:

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit and Faye Haywood, Internal Audit
Manager

Subject:

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Purpose:

This report examines the progress made between 7 January 2019 and 4 March
2019 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for
2018/19.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That members note the completion of the internal audit plan of work for 2018/19.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the
Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting
at South Holland is to each meeting.
To comply with the above the report identifies:
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance measures to date.

2.0

CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1

The current position in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
are shown within the report.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress
Report on Internal Audit Activity. In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their
terms of reference.

4.0

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Corporate Priorities

4.1.1

Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.
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4.2

Financial

4.2.1

The Internal Audit Plan has been delivered within the approved budget for 2018/19.

4.3

Risk Management

44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.
Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533873
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds and Faye Haywood
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices attached to this report: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
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Eastern Internal Audit Services

South Holland District Council
Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
Period Covered: 7 January 2019 to 4 March 2019
Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager
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1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the
internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes:





Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
Performance to date.

2.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

2.1

At the meeting on 15 March 2018, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved,
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since our last report no further changes to the
plan have been made.

3.

PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

3.1

The current position in completing audits to date within the financial year is shown in
Appendix 1. The following financial systems audits are currently delayed. A response from
the internal audit team at East Lindsey District Council is provided below;
Audit
Revenues

Deadline
January 2019

Benefits

January 2019

Housing Rents

November 2018

Auditor
East Lindsey District
Council
East Lindsey District
Council
East Lindsey District
Council

“Audit work in respect of the services provided to South Holland by Compass Point Business
Services is progressing and we are currently on schedule to complete the work in good time
to inform the Annual Audit opinion. We have experienced some delay to the original planned
timescales due to the unforeseen departure of the auditor conducting the work, however
resources have been realigned and the work is now progressing”.
3.2

In summary 176 days of programmed work has been completed, equating to 70% of the
(revised) Audit Plan for 2018/19.

4.

THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

4.1

On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following
definitions:
Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the
time of our review were being consistently applied.
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Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the
process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks.
Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks.
No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to
manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process.
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks.
4.2

Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following
definitions:
Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be
taken within 1 month.
Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within
3 months.
Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be
taken within 6 months.

4.3

In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed,
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not
part of the follow up process.

4.4

During the period covered by the report Internal Audit Services have issued four final
reports:
Audit

Assurance

P1

P2

P3

Building Control

Substantial

0

0

1

Procurement and Contract Management

Limited

0

9

3

GDPR Corporate Governance

Reasonable

0

2

2

Leisure

Substantial

0

0

0

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies of these
reports can be requested by Members.
4.5

As can be seen in the table above as a result of these audits 17 recommendations have
been raised. All 17 of these recommendations have been agreed by management.

4.6

It is also pleasing to note that three audits concluded in a positive opinion being awarded
indicating a stable control environment in these areas.
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4.7

A limited assurance grading was raised in the area of Procurement and Contract
Management. A total of nine important recommendations have been raised. It was noted
within the report that the Central Contract and Procurement Team is a newly established
team, and that many of the recommendations relate to legacy issues. Many of the
recommendations already form part of the Team’s work plan and were partially or largely
implemented at the time of the audit. Since the audit was completed, four important
recommendations have been implemented, with evidence provided accordingly.

4.8

The following important recommendations from the Procurement and Contract Management
report remain outstanding and will be monitored through our follow up process.







Details of exemptions to be recorded on the Contracts Registers.
The current contract template is reviewed against the requirements of the
Constitution and updated accordingly and specifically, to include the requirements of
the Human Rights Act.
Clarity be provided within the Contract Procedures Rules as to what level of officer
may authorise each level of the procurement process.
The Contracts Register to be updated to cover all aspects of Local Government
Transparency Code guidance.
A Procurement Strategy is produced for South Holland.

5.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES TIAA

5.1

The TIAA element of Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance
measures against which the contractor is reviewed on a quarterly basis. There is a total of
11 indicators, over 4 areas.

5.2

There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:




9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Manager to ensure that appropriate action
is taken.
5.3

The third quarters work has been completed and a report on the performance measures
provided to the Internal Audit Manager, performance is currently at green status with the
majority of targets having been met for this quarter.
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APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK
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APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of Building Control Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS
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Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs
Attention

Operational

*Procedures

0

0

1

0

Total

0

0

1

0

*The recommendation refers to procedures covering all areas in scope
i.e. plan checks and decisions, inspections and completion certificates,
fee setting and income and performance of the service.

SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place over Building Control to help confirm that these are operating adequately,
effectively and efficiently. The audit covered: policy, procedures, plan checks and decisions, inspections and completion certificates, fee setting and income
and performance of the service and market share.
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RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Substantial Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance
opinion has been derived as a result of one 'needs attention' recommendation being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny at South Holland by TIAA. As such, no direction of travel is applicable.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:
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The Building Control team has a dedicated Office Technician providing administrative support for the Ocella system. This allows prompt oversight to systems
users and writing bespoke reports to manage/monitor the system.



Ocella is used to record, monitor and manage all building control applications. The system also has a remote application allowing Building Control Officers to
make on site recordings. This enables officers to provide real time responses to agents in respect of building application decisions.



Completion certificates for all the five full plan applications tested had been issued on the same day as the final site visit and approved by either the Building
Consultancy Manager or the deputy the Building Control Team Leader. System controls on Ocella prevent completion inspection certificates from being issued
until payment has been received, visits completed and any outstanding issues have been cleared. This ensures certificates are issued once all the requite
steps have been taken.



The Building Control Department applies the Local Authority Building Control (LABC) guidance for local authorities on producing a model charging scheme,
thereby providing a consistent approach used by other local authorities. All relevant fees collected for the sample of applications reviewed had been applied in
accordance with approved charges.



All inspection visits are recorded on Ocella along with supporting reports from the inspectors for each visit which supports the fees charged. The system
places the application on hold until the fees are paid.
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ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas where one 'needs attention' recommendation has been made.
Procedures


There is a need to provide evidence that written procedures are up to date in order to reduce the risk of incorrect or inconsistent practices developing.

Operational Effectiveness Matters
No operational effectiveness matters have been raised.
This area has not been subject to previous scrutiny by TIAA Ltd.
Other issues noted
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The Council has a comprehensive suite of key performance indicators for monitoring service provision. This includes the number of estimated applications lost each
month to Approved Inspectors which is reported via Pentana and is accessed by senior management and members.
The annual benchmarking report for building control performance for 2017/18 in the Lincolnshire area lists eight councils and one Council partnership. This report
shows that only three organisations made a surplus, South Holland District Council being one, with all the remaining five organisation making a loss. This report
shows that South Holland District Council made a surplus during this period of £40.8k and estimated loss of income to Approved Inspectors of £26.3k which should
also be noted is the lowest estimated income loss to Approved Inspectors in the Lincolnshire area.
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Assurance Review of Procurement and Contract Management Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS
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Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

Procurement of Works,
Services and Supplies

0

7

3

0

Exemptions

0

3

0

0

Off Contract Spend

0

1

0

0

Total

0

9

3

0

SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Procurement, to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively
and efficiently.

Page 10 of 20

RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Limited Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance
opinion has been derived as a result of eleven 'important' and three 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



A review of Procurement (BRK/17/16) was completed as part of the 2016/17 audit plan for Breckland DC, which focused primarily on compliance with the
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (Regulations 22 and 53). This culminated in a final Position Statement being issued in March 2017 detailing a number of
suggested actions/improvements. This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny at South Holland DC by TIAA. As such, no direction of travel is
provided in respect of either Council.



It is noted that the Central Contract and Procurement Team is a newly established team, and that many of the recommendations relate to legacy issues. It
was further noted that many of the recommendations already form part of the Team’s work plan and were partially or largely implemented at the time of the
audit. Since the audit was completed, six of the total fourteen recommendations have been implemented, with evidence provided accordingly.
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POSITIVE FINDINGS
It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:


Project planning standard documentation has been produced by the Corporate Contracts and Procurement Manager for tenders which guides staff through
the process and ensures that all necessary documentation is completed.



The Council uses the online procurement portal In-tend, which fulfils the requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2015.



Training on Procurement is included as part of the Governance training thereby widening the requirements of correct procurement arrangements within the
Council.



Implemented a new tool ‘Illuminator’ to help us access business intelligence information as part of the procurement process thereby providing wider
knowledge of procurement activity.



Access to In-tend is restricted and a review of access levels confirmed that only current staff are activated. This demonstrates that the Council’s procurement
data is adequately safeguarded.
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A full review of 12 month supplier spend data has been completed for Breckland Council. This has identified contracts that had not been recorded on the
published register and identified areas to test the market for potential savings. Furthermore, the Central Contract and Procurement Team has also developed
a clear process alongside finance to both define and record cashable and non-cashable benefits achieved as part of procurement and contract management.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED
The audit has highlighted the following areas where nine 'important' recommendations have been made.
Procurement of works, services and supplies
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A procurement strategy is required for South Holland. Without this document key Council procurement objectives may not be clearly defined and so could be
missed.



At the time of the review, the Contracts Register for South Holland Council was not available on the Council’s website. There is a risk to the Council’s
reputation by not complying with the Local Government Transparency Code.



The Contracts Register requires updating to cover all aspects of Local Government Transparency Code guidance. South Holland’s Contract Register is
missing the reference number, title of agreement, supplier details, procurement route, and supplier type The reputation of both Council’s may be at risk by not
openly publishing contract information in accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code.



Clarity be provided within the Contract Procedures Rules as to what level of officer may authorise each level of procurement process. Without this, staff may
authorise expenditure over and above their levels of delegated authority in breach of Contract Procedures Rules and in doing so, commit the Council to
contractual arrangements that do not demonstrate best value.



The current contract template is reviewed against the requirements of the Contract Procedure Rules, in particular, contact clause requirements and updated
accordingly and specifically, to include the requirements of the Human Rights Act. The Council may not be able to prove it is discharging its duty with regard
to the Human Rights Act and standard legal requirements may not be included in the standard contract template.

Exemptions


Exemption information is not held within the Contracts Register and so there is a risk that exemptions are not accurately recorded or that the Council is able to
demonstrate compliance with the Local Government Transparency Code in regard all of its procurement activity.



All exemptions require monitoring by the S151 Officer (and evidenced maintained) in accordance with the Constitution. Where exemptions are not approved
in line with the Constitution, there is an increased risk of inappropriate exemptions being processed.



All exemption forms be returned to the Central Contract and Procurement Team to ensure that full records are held. The Council may not be able to prove it
has followed correct procedures in a fair and transparent manner if documentation cannot be located.
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Off contract spend


Suppler spend analysis be fully completed. There is a risk that best value for money may not be achieved and CSOs may not be complied with.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.
Procurement of works, services and supplies


A full review of all guidance for staff on procurement processes has not been undertaken, and therefore elements of the Constitution may not be followed as
they are not included in the available guidance.



Ensure reports are produced on the outcome of any competitive procurement process in accordance with the Constitution. There is a risk of non-compliance
with this particular element of the Constitution.



A post implementation review is required for all contracts over £75k in accordance with the Financial Procedures Rules within the Constitution. Without this is
a risk of non-compliance with the Constitution and that lessons learnt are not addressed and materialise in future procurements.

Operational Effectiveness Matters
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There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.
Previous audit recommendations
The audit reviewed the previous internal audit recommendations, of which none remain outstanding.
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Assurance Review of Corporate Governance GDPR
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS
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Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

Governance

0

0

2

0

Data Classification and
Asset Management

0

1

0

0

Third Party Providers

0

2

0

0

Total

0

2

2

0

No recommendations arose in relation to impact assessments, data subject rights,
data security and breach management, consent, Data Controllers and Processors,
communication or training. Actions in relation to these areas are included by the
Councils’ General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) plan however, which is workin-progress.

SCOPE
The review assessed compliance with the key GDPR elements of: Data Protection Impact Assessments, Data Subject rights, data classification and asset
management, data security and breach management, governance, Data Controllers & Processors, and training for staff and members in preparation for
GDPR.
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RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance
opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and two 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny by Tiaa, hence, no comparable direction of travel indicator is provided.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

Page 87



The Executive Manager for Governance is the designated Data Protection Officer (DPO); a role required under GDPR. The Senior Information Risk Owner
(SIRO) role has been transferred to the Executive Manager for Information, which will be confirmed in the Constitution in January 2019. Separating these
roles reduces the risk of any conflicts of interest.



The Executive Manager for Governance and DPO reports to the Statutory Information Group (SIG) which in turn reports to the Executive Management Team
(EMT). Briefings also go to Portfolio Holders and Scrutiny Committees at both Councils. At South Holland, there is also a Data Protection and Data Retention
Task Group that reports to the Policy Development Panel. EMT minutes show progress is regularly reported, reducing the risk of GDPR non-compliance due
to lack of management buy-in.



Data Protection Leads or 'champions' have been assigned in all departments. This helps embed a culture of data protection, reducing the risk of data
incidents.



Evidence demonstrates comprehensive GDPR communication and training for Data Protection Leads, other staff and Members, reducing the risk of data
protection incidents. E-learning training records show 86% compliance and there is an action in the GDPR plan to improve Member training levels to increase
this further.



The Executive Manager for Governance and DPO described a good level of support and buy-in from the leadership in respect of the GDPR implementation,
including the secondment of the Information Governance (IG) Officer. The Executive Manager for Governance and DPO plans to prepare a business case for
the IG Officer role to be made permanent to continue the focus on GDPR. Properly resourcing the GDPR implementation reduces the risk of failing to
introduce the required controls.
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Updated privacy policies and privacy notices are posted onto the Councils' websites. There are also privacy statements on staff and Member email signatures
and Members also have their own privacy notices. This reduces the risk of the public not understanding how their information is collected and used.



A Data Protection Policy appendix sets out the process and the one month timescale for handling Subject Action Requests (SARs) is in line with GDPR. With
the exception of one administration error, testing confirmed that all SARs received after May 2018 were responded to in accordance with the one month
GDPR target, reducing the risk of GDPR non-compliance and complaints.



There is a clear incident reporting process which is followed to record and investigate incidents, including any potential data breaches. This is supported by a
risk assessment process used to determine the severity of the breach and whether it is reportable to the ICO. Staff are reminded of the importance of promptly
reporting any incidents, reducing the risk of fines from the ICO.



There is a documented Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) process, and a template has been designed which requires the advice of the DPO.
Testing confirmed that a recent DPIA had been fully completed and agreed by both the Executive Manager for Governance and DPO and SIRO, reducing the
risk of data not being protected.



Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd provides back office services to South Holland District Council through a partnership approach. It was
confirmed that incidents are reported to the Council, logged and investigated. This process reduces the risk of failure to report and learn from incidents, which
could lead to fines under GDPR.



South Holland has purchased insurance with Lloyds through CFC Underwriting Limited. The insurance clauses cover cyber incident response, cyber-crime,
system damage and business interruption, network security and privacy liability, media liability, and court attendance costs. The liability limit for privacy and
regulatory fines is £2m.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED
The audit has highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made.
Data Classification and Asset Management


Information Asset Registers (IARs) to be populated and to include with whom information is shared. This to then be reviewed to ensure sharing is appropriate
and supported by information sharing agreements as part of the development of the Record of Processing Activity (RoPA). Protecting all information assets
and flows reduces the risk of data breaches.

Third Party Providers


The wording of the Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd contract to be revised to include demonstrable compliance with GDPR and evidence
subsequently be sought that GDPR compliance is maintained. This will reduce the risk of potential supplier non-compliance causing reputational damage for
the Council through breaches in GDPR.
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The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.
Governance


A document control section to be added to the Data Protection Policies to reduce the risk of GDPR non-compliance due to staff following old versions of the
policies.



GDPR related risk scores be reviewed on the Pentana system to reduce the chances of likelihood and impact scores being unrealistic or unachievable.

Operational Effectiveness Matters
There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.
Previous audit recommendations
No previous internal audit review of GDPR has been undertaken by Tiaa.
Other points noted
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The Information Governance Officer was appointed on 14th May 2018 initially on a 12-18 month secondment. The Executive Manager – Governance and
DPO is planning to prepare a business case for making this post permanent.



There is a GDPR project plan, incorporating 70 actions to be completed by December 2019, in order to demonstrate full GDPR compliance. The timetable
was originally agreed by the Executive Manager – Governance and DPO and the Information Governance Officer, to sit alongside the 18 months duration of
the Information Governance contract term with the risks prioritised. These are Red, Amber and Green (RAG) rated based on progress and risk, with
progress regularly reported to the EMT. At the time of the audit, 11 items were Red rated. Not all instances were annotated to explain why or what remedial
action had been agreed. This has been, to date, verbally explained to EMT, although it was agreed with the Information Governance Officer that this
information will be recorded in the project plan moving forward. As such, no recommendation has been raised.



There is a need for an overall up to date Retention Policy and retention schedules. The development of a Retention Policy and update of the Council’s
retention schedules are included in the GDPR project plan, with a target dates of December 2018 and April 2019 respectively. As such, no recommendation
has been raised.



A Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) log was established during the audit visit. This will help track future DPIAs to ensure full completion and sign
off. As such, no recommendation has been raised.
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Assurance Review of Leisure Arrangements
Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT

ACTION POINTS
Control Area

Urgent

Important

Needs Attention

Operational

No recommendations have been raised.
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SCOPE
The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Leisure, to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and
efficiently.
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RATIONALE



The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Substantial Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance
opinion has been derived as a result of no recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.



A previous review of Leisure (SH/17/11) was completed with a Position Statement issued in May 2017 that made a number of Suggested
Actions/Improvements, all of which were accepted by management. Since no overall assurance opinion was provided, a direction of travel cannot be provided
on this occasion, although it is recognised that all the ‘Suggested Actions/Improvements’ included therein, have been addressed by the Council.



It also needs to be noted that the Council is still working on its mobilisation plans from moving from one provider to a new provider of its leisure services and
that this audit was completed up to a given point in time and upon which the overall assurance opinion was based. Therefore, this report cannot take in to
account any issues that may potentially arise, hereafter.
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POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:


The Council has undertaken a thorough review of its leisure services provision both in respect of the Castle Sports Complex and the Peele Leisure Centre,
with a report to Full Council on 28th November 2018 that considered options for a new contract, with effect from 1st March 2019.



The Council has resolved the long term contract arrangements for the provision of leisure at both the Castle Sports Complex and the Peele Leisure Centre
through a formal procurement exercise resulting in the appointment of Parkwood Leisure. The new contract will commence from 1st March 2019 for a period of
five years with the option to extend by a further two years. This arrangement will generate a new revenue stream for the Council as well as enhancing leisure
provision to the area.



A thorough procurement process was undertaken prior to the awarding of the contract to Parkwood Leisure thereby ensuring full compliance with the Council's
Constitution (Financial Procedure Rules) and EU requirements and with the Council having taken specialist advice in the process.



A formal mobilisation plan exists to oversee the smooth transition from the current contract arrangements to the new contract. This is continually updated and
includes for example, project meeting dates, communication plans, employees/TUPE details, financials, facility and equipment condition/handover, quality
procedures and client monitoring, health and safety, ICT, pricing and programming and capital development programme. It also includes handover details and
due diligence that Parkwood has completed with 1 Life.
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There was clear evidence to support continued monitoring of the current leisure provider at both the Castle Sports Complex and the Peele Leisure Centre with
action taken in light of issues found and reporting through weekly and monthly client meetings and in addition to other ad hoc communications as and when
necessary. There was also evidence of six-monthly reporting to the Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP) Task and Finish Group.



Formal contract monitoring arrangements are still being developed, although with the emphasis on the Council placing more reliance of the new provider's
own monitoring arrangements. The Council though is still intending to undertake independent monitoring, which, for example, if not weekly like the current
arrangements, will be monthly, which is the industry standard. A review of Leisure services has been included in the 2019/20 internal audit plan, whereby it will
be possible to assess the new contract monitoring arrangements in more detail.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED
No recommendations have been raised
Operational Effectiveness Matters
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There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.
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Agenda Item 7.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

To:

Governance and Audit Committee, 28 February 2019

Author:

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit and Faye Haywood, Internal Audit
Manager

Subject:

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Purpose:

This report provides members with the position on the progress made by
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 28
February 2019.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That members note the contents of the report.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s
implementation of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall
reporting requirements to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to
its Internal Audit Service.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit to establish a process to
monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been effectively
implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking action.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions.

2.0

CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up
Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations. In doing so, the
Committee is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which
management has progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 28 February 2019.

4.0

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Corporate Priorities

4.1.1

Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the
efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.
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4.2

Risk Management

4.2.1

Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with
those controls materialising.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager
Telephone Number: 01508 533873
Email: efhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds and Faye Haywood
Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices attached to this report: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
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Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
Period Covered: 30 November 2018 to 28 February 2019
Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION

2

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS

2

3. STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS

2

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations

5

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18

6

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - 2018/19

9

Page 1 of 9

Page 95

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation
to the internal audit activity.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to
determine.

1.3

To comply with the above this report includes:


2.

The status of agreed actions.

FOLLOW UP PROCESS
Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations

2.1

As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to
ensure implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer.

2.2

EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or
agreeing to the extension date provided.

2.3

Escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which have been
overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and through the
Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 Officer to
ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further escalation is
through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.
Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) Audit Recommendations

2.4

East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) undertake the internal audit reviews of the Compass
Point Business Services key functions. Recommendations raised are then subsequently
monitored by ELDC staff, with updates provided to the Head of Internal Audit for South
Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are now also recorded on Pentana,
which enables greater oversight by both CPBS and South Holland management.

3.

STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations, and reflects the year in which
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding
recommendations. The table also identifies between outstanding recommendations that
have previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become
outstanding this time around.

3.2

In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers.
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Of those, 68 have been implemented by management, 14 are outstanding (nine urgent and
five important). A total of three recommendations (two urgent and one important) are not yet
due.
3.3

The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent and important outstanding
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 2 of the report.

3.4

In addition, 22 advisory points were raised for CPBS audits and whilst these are not formal
recommendations to be followed up, it is expected that these will be addressed in due
course and progress will be reviewed.
Number raised to date

85

Complete

68

80%

Outstanding

14

16%

Not yet due

3

4%

3.5

Update on progress with limited and no assurance conclusions

3.6

The internal audit review of Asset Management concluded with a limited assurance, four
recommendations including three of urgent priority remain overdue. Management comments
in relation to these recommendations are provided at Appendix 2 of the report. These
outstanding recommendations will also be considered during the quarter four review of Asset
Management.

3.7

The internal audit review of the Revenues Service concluded with a limited assurance and a
total of five recommendations were raised. Four of which are now complete, and one urgent
recommendation is now overdue, the deadline has been further extended until 29 March
2019, details relating to progress has been provided by management and can be found in
Appendix 2 of the report.

3.8

The internal audit review of the Payroll service concluded in a limited assurance and a total
of seven recommendations were raised. Four of which are now complete, two urgent
recommendations are now overdue with a revised deadline of 31 March 2019. Both of these
recommendations relate to producing an establishment list and consideration should
therefore be made to consolidating two recommendations into one. One urgent
recommendation is not yet due. Further detail on these recommendations can be found at
Appendix 2 of the report.

3.9

The internal audit review of the Accounts Receivable service concluded with no assurance
and a total of 10 recommendations were raised, with six of these now confirmed as
complete. One urgent recommendation is not yet due, and two urgent recommendations
continue to be overdue. One important recommendation remains overdue and further
extensions have been agreed. Further details can be found at Appendix 2 of the report.
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3.10

3.11

In 2018/19 a total of 39 recommendations have been raised so far. Of these 11 have been
completed and two (one important and one needs attention) are overdue. A total of 26
recommendations are not yet due.
Number raised to date

39

Complete

11

28%

Outstanding

2

5%

Not yet due

26

67%

The management responses in relation to the outstanding important recommendations can
be seen at Appendix 3 of the report.

Page 498
of 9
Page

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations

Page 99
Page 5 of 9

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18

Page 100

Audit Area

Responsible
Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status
Description

Original
Date

Revised
Date

Latest Note

SH1804
Welland Homes

Strategic
Housing
Manager

Medium

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

31-Mar-18

30-Apr-19

We have a draft agreement ready but it
needs Council approval before we can
obtain Welland Homes approval, which is
going to cause some delay.

SH1809 Asset
Management

Property
Services
Manager

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

21-Jun-18

29-Mar-19

A framework agreement is in the process of
being signed to enable additional resource
with the necessary skills to complete this
piece of work. It is intended that resource
will start by the end of February, with
traction against actions visible in March and
then first quarter.

SH1809 Asset
Management

Property
Services
Manager

To devise a service level
agreement to formally record
the services provided by the
Council to Welland Homes, and
to the terms on which those
services are provided, including
service charges.
A programmed review of all
leases is to be undertaken, this
will include; Lease agreements
be entered into for existing
tenants, Lease agreements be
entered into for new tenants
and a review of rent increments
given to long term tenants on or
before the expiration of their
current lease period.
End of tenancy inspections be
undertaken, with a checklist
completed to record any repair
works on the property, along
with costs being recovered
from tenants where applicable

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

01-Apr-18

29-Mar-19

SH1809 Asset
Management

Technical
Project Coordinator

Rent free periods granted to
tenants be documented with
details of justification, approval,
and duration of the rent free
period and retained on file.
This is then to be appropriately
reviewed and actioned once
the rent free period has
concluded.

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

02-Oct-18

29-Mar-19

A framework agreement is in the process of
being signed to enable additional resource
with the necessary skills to complete this
piece of work. It is intended that resource
will start by the end of February, with
traction against actions visible in March and
then first quarter.
A framework agreement is in the process of
being signed to enable additional resource
with the necessary skills to complete this
piece of work. It is intended that resource
will start by the end of February, with
traction against actions visible in March and
then first quarter.

SH1809 Asset
Management

Housing
Landlord
Services
Manager

The Letting Policy be updated
to reflect current practices,
such as not obtaining deposits
from tenants in the industrial
units and how end of tenancy
checks will take account of any
damages incurred by the
tenant.

Medium

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

21-Jun-18

29-Mar-19
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A framework agreement is in the process of
being signed to enable additional resource
with the necessary skills to complete this
piece of work. It is intended that resource
will start by the end of February, with
traction against actions visible in March and
then first quarter.

Audit Area

Responsible
Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status
Description

Original
Date

Revised
Date

Latest Note

SH1818
Planning

Planning and
Building Control
Manager

Another officer be allocated to
cover enforcement activity in
the absence of the Senior
Compliance Officer during busy
periods or periods of absence.

Medium

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

31-Mar-18

29-Mar-19

This will come through the Planning &
Building Control Review. The potential for a
second full-time enforcement officer is being
explored through the Planning and Building
Control Service review.

Financial Audits CPBS
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CR&BACT012
Housing
Benefits Key
Controls

Head of
Finance

Consider alternative document
management system options

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

31-Dec-19

31-Mar-19

Preparation of procurement specification
and documentation underway, supported by
Lincs Procurement. We anticipate that this
will be out to tender in February and then in
a position to close this action as complete.

CFINAUD001d
Accounts
Payable Key
Controls

Head of
Finance

Medium

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

30-Sep-18

29-Mar-19

This will be actioned once the Authorisation
Matrix has been finalised and rolled out
across the Council.

CR&BAUD001f
Revenues Key
Controls

Head of
Finance

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

30-Sep-18

28-Feb-19

The correct information is not printing on the
receipt, Capita have agreed to send a test to
IT, this is not going to take long once it is
received.

CHRMAUD001a
HR & Payroll

HR Service
Manager

On roll out of the new
Authorisation Matrix managers
are to ensure that the entries
for their service area are
reviewed and updated.
Ability to refund back to original
card payment methods is yet to
be implemented. Clear
monitoring of the
implementation of Paye.net be
in place.
Establishment lists be
produced and provided to
managers to review and
confirm that there are no
inaccuracies.

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

30-Jun-17

31-Mar-19

Response from consultants is still pending in
respect of resolving issues with viewing the
full establishment report within the system.
Until a response is provided a basic
establishment list is being produced and
shared with managers. Finance also send
salary details to managers monthly for
review. Following a response from the
consultants a meeting will be held with the
Section 151 Officer to determine and agree
the way forward.
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Audit Area

Responsible
Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status
Description

Original
Date

Revised
Date

Latest Note

CMRMAUD001b
HR & Payroll

HR Service
Manager

Establishment lists be
produced and provided to
managers to review and
confirm that there are no
inaccuracies.

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

31-Dec-18

31-Mar-19

Continue to await a response from the
Consultant. Once received a discussion will
be arranged with S151 to discuss options.

CFINAUD001a
Accounts
Receivable

Head of
Finance

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

28-Feb-18

31-Mar-19

Limits have been agreed with the Deputy
Section 151 Officer and the Finance team
are now in the process of updating each
entry to reflect these limits.

CR&BAUD001e
Accounts
Receivable

Head of
Finance

High

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

28-Sep-18

31-Mar-19

This will be actioned once the Authorisation
Matrix has been finalised and rolled out
across the Council.

CR&BAUD001e
Accounts
Receivable

Head of
Finance

Full review of both Council's
Authorisation Matrix be
undertaken to ensure that
appropriate officers have their
authorisation approved and
documented. Staff be reminded
to keep the matrix up to date
with any changes (new
starters/leavers)
On roll out of the new
Authorisation Matrix managers
are to ensure that the entries
for their service area are
reviewed and updated.
Reintroduce the VAT E
Learning. Monitor the
completion of the E Learning by
all relevant staff

Medium

Outstanding
(With Agreed
Extension)

28-Sep-18

31-Mar-19

VAT E Learning has been rolled out as part
of the portal relaunch. The completion of the
E Learning will be raised by Finance
Business Partners at their monthly meetings
with managers
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APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2018/19
Audit Area

Responsible
Officer

Recommendations

Priority

Status
Description

Original Date

Revised Date

Latest Note

SH1901

Procurement
and Contract
Management

Production of a Procurement
Strategy

Medium

Outstanding
(Extension
Agreed)

31-Jan-19

31 May 2019

Our procurements are going
to be undertaken in line with
the National Procurement
Strategy. This is yet to be
implemented.
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Agenda Item 8.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Head of Internal Audit

To:

Governance and Audit Committee, 14 March 2019

Author:

Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit
Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager

Subject:

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2019/20

Purpose:

This report provides an overview of the stages followed prior to the
formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 to 2021/22 and the
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20.
The Annual Internal Audit Plan will then serve as the work programme for the
Council’s Internal Audit Services Contractor; TIAA Ltd.
It will also provide the basis for the Annual Audit Opinion on the overall
adequacy and effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s framework of
governance, risk management and control.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That the Committee notes and approves:
a) the Internal Audit Charter
b) the Internal Audit Strategy for 2019/20;
b) the Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2019/20 to 2021/22; and
c) the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or
guidance”.

1.2

Those standards are set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which
came into effect in April 2013.

1.3

The attached report contains;
o

the Internal Audit Charter which formally defines the internal audit’s purpose,
authority and responsibility, and is a mandatory document;

o

the Internal Audit Strategy, which is a strategic high level statement on how the
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter
and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities;

o

the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, which details the plan of work for the next three
financial years; and

o

the Annual Internal Audit Plan, which details the timing and the purpose of each
audit agreed for inclusion in 2019/20.
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2.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

The risk-based internal audit plans will add real value to the Council, have a defined and
specific scope for each review and ensure that risks in relation to the service area are being
reviewed by Internal Audit, thus enabling best practice to be followed.

3.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

3.1

The Council’s key business risks will be addressed by Internal Audit, thus ensuring that
appropriate controls are in place to mitigate such risks and also ensure that the appropriate
and proportionate level of action is taken.

3.2

The Internal Audit Service will be seen to add value, become a useful management tool
and link more directly to the Council’s risk management processes

4.0

IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Corporate Priorities

4.1.1

Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas and risks reviewed are working
towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

4.2

Financial

4.2.1

The Internal Audit Service is provided by way of a Partnership Agreement with South
Norfolk Council, whereby South Norfolk Council provide the role of the Head of Internal
Audit and Contract Manager to South Holland District Council, and the service provision i.e.
delivery of the audits, is provided through a contract with TIAA Ltd. The 2018/19 plans have
been set within the approved budget.

4.3

Risk Management

4.3.1

The Risk Based Internal Audit approach will ensure that the Council’s key risks are
accurately reviewed and updated and thus the Internal Audit Service is adding value and
auditing the key risk areas.

4.4

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

4.4.1

The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans for 2019/20 have been consulted upon with
Senior Managers, the Executive Management Team and External Audit, prior to coming to
the Committee.

Background papers: None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit and
Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager
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Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No
Appendices attached to this report: Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2019/20
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Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2019/20
Responsible Officer: Head of Internal Audit
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1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or
guidance”.

1.2

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) mandate a periodic preparation of a riskbased plan, which must incorporate or be linked to a strategic high level statement on how the
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter and how
it links to the organisational objectives and priorities, this is set out in the Internal Audit
Strategy.

1.3

Risk is defined as 'the possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the
achievement of objectives’. Risk can be a positive and negative aspect, so as well as
managing things that could have an adverse impact (downside risk) it is also important to look
at potential benefits (upside risk).

1.4

The development of a risk-based plan takes into account the organisation's risk management
framework. The process identifies the assurance (and consulting) assignments for a specific
period, by identifying and prioritising all those areas on which objective assurance is required.
This is then also applied when carrying out individual risk based assignments to provide
assurance on part of the risk management framework, including the mitigation of individual or
groups of risks.

1.5

The following factors are also taken into account when developing the internal audit plan:







1.6

Any declarations of interest so as to avoid conflicts of interest;
The requirements of the use of specialists e.g. IT auditors;
Striking the right balance over the range of reviews needing to be delivered, for
example systems and risk based reviews, specific key controls testing, value for money
and added value reviews;
The relative risk maturity of the Council;
Allowing contingency time to undertake ad-hoc reviews or fraud investigations as
necessary;
The time required to carry out the audit planning process effectively as well as regular
reporting to and attendance at Governance and Audit Committee, the development of
the annual report and opinion and the Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme.

In accordance with best practice the Governance and Audit Committee should ‘review and
assess the annual internal audit work plan’.
2. AUDIT CHARTER

2.1

There is an obligation under the PSIAS for the Charter to be periodically reviewed and
presented. This Charter is therefore reviewed annually by the Head of Internal Audit to confirm
its ongoing validity and completeness, and presented to the Section 151 Officer, Senior
Management and the Governance and Audit Committee every two years, or as required for
review.

2.2

The latest version of the Charter included at Appendix 1 of this report has been updated to
reference the Internal Audit Manager role, reporting to the Head of Internal Audit and
responsible for providing management oversight on the performance of the contractor.
Page 110
2 of 24
Page

2.3

As part of the review of the Audit Charter the Code of Ethics are also reviewed by the Head of
Internal Audit, and it is ensured that the Internal Audit Services contractor staff, the Head of
Internal Audit and the Internal Audit Manager adhere to these, specifically with regard to;
integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and competency. Formal sign off to acceptance of the Code
of Ethics is retained by the Head of Internal Audit.
3. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY

3.1

The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy (see Appendix 2) is to confirm:





How internal audit services will be delivered;
How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit
charter;
How internal audit services links to organisational objectives and priorities; and
How the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed.

4. STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
4.1

The overarching objective of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan (see Appendix 3) is to provide
a comprehensive programme of review work over the next three years, with each year
providing sufficient audit coverage to give annual opinions, which can be used to inform the
organisation’s Annual Governance Statement.

4.2

The coverage over the forthcoming years has been discussed with Executive Management
Team to ensure that audits are undertaken at the right time, at a time where value can be
added, as well as ensuring sufficient coverage for an Annual Opinion on the framework of
governance, risk management and control. The discussions also went into greater detail in
relation to the scope of the audits for the forthcoming financial year.

4.3

The Strategic Plan has also taken account of the audit that was deferred from 2018/19;
Environmental Protection as previously reported through to the Governance and Audit
Committee.
5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

5.1

Having developed the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, the Annual Internal Audit Plan is an extract
of this for the forthcoming financial year (see Appendix 4). This appendix provides details of
the areas being reviewed by Internal Audit in 2019/20, the number of days for each review,
the quarter during which the audit will take place and a brief summary / purpose of the review
and highlights those audit reviews which we be jointly undertaken with Breckland DC.

5.2

The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 totals 235 days, 170 of which are provided by
Eastern Internal Audit Services and 65 days of which are for review of the services provided
by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) Ltd, the audit of which is provided by East
Lindsey District Council.

5.3

The work provided by Eastern Internal Audit Services encompasses 18 audits, nine of which
will be jointly carried out at Breckland DC and South Holland DC.
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5.4

Audit verification work concerning audit recommendations implemented to improve the
Council’s internal control environment will also be undertaken throughout the financial year.

5.5

The audits of CPBS services by East Lindsey District Council are to review the key controls
which feed into the statement of the accounts, and to review the Housing Benefit Subsidy work
for the external auditors. Within CPBS two in depth reviews will be undertaken by Eastern
Internal Audit Services, these are Accounts Receivable and Income. The timing of these
reviews is to be confirmed, as we are aware that CPBS are looking to procure a new finance
system, we need to work alongside the implementation plan for this to ensure that the review
is carried out at the right time.

5.6

The Head of Internal Audit / Internal Audit Manager is a member of the Finance Board and
attends the Performance, Risk and Audit Board as appropriate, both of which have established
terms of reference. Participating in these Boards results in a greater awareness of Council
business and key activities and has also resulted in good working relationships being
maintained with key officers.
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APPENDIX 1 – INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
EASTERN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER FOR 2019/20
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) came into effect from 1 April 2013, these
provide a consolidated approach across the public sector encouraging continuity, sound
corporate governance and transparency.

1.2

The Standards require all internal audit services to implement, monitor and review an internal
audit charter; this formally defines the internal audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility,
and is a mandatory document.

1.3

The charter also displays formal commitment to and recognises the mandatory nature of the
Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the
Standards, I.e. the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF).

1.4

This Internal Audit Charter is applicable to each of the following internal audit consortium
members covered by Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS).








Breckland District Council;
Broadland District Council;
Great Yarmouth Borough Council;
North Norfolk District Council
South Holland District Council;
South Norfolk Council; and
Broads Authority.

1.5

The term Local Authority will be used to describe the above consortium members throughout
the Charter.

1.6

Mission
Standards require the Internal Audit Function to articulate its overall purpose and summarise
the way it will provide value to the organisation. The mission statement for EIAS is as follows:
“Protecting each of our consortium members ability to enhance value through the provision of
independent risk-based assurance and advice”

1.7

This charter:
 Establishes the position and reporting lines of internal audit;
 Outlines provision for unrestricted access to information, officers, management and
members as appropriate;
 Sets the tone for internal audit activities;
 Defines the nature and scope of internal audit services, in particular assurance and
consultancy services; and
 Sets out the nature and scope of assurance provided to other parties.

1.8

The charter is to be periodically reviewed and presented to Senior Management and the Board
for approval. The charter will be reviewed annually by the Chief Audit Executive to confirm its
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ongoing completeness and validity, and presented to Senior Management and the Board
every 2 years for review.
2

Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

2.1

Purpose

2.1.1

Internal auditing is best summarised through its definition with the Standards, “an independent,
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an
organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes”.

2.1.2

Internal audit will provide reasonable assurance to each member of the Internal Audit
Consortium, that necessary arrangements are in place and operating effectively, and to
identify risk exposures and areas where improvements can be made.

2.2

Authority

2.2.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015, states that the relevant body must;
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing
standards or guidance”. The statutory requirement for internal audit is recognised in the
Constitution of each Local Authority and the internal auditing standards in this regard are the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

2.2.2

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Statement on the Role of
the Head of Internal Audit confirms that this person is responsible for the organisation’s
internal audit service, including drawing up the internal audit strategy and annual plan and
giving the annual audit opinion. The requirements of this statement are fully adhered to by the
Chief Audit Executive.

2.3

Responsibility

2.3.1

The responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit to evaluate risk
management, control and governance processes lies with each Local Authority’s Chief
Finance Officer (the Section 151 Officer or Section 17 Officer).

2.3.2

The Local Authority and its Members must be satisfied about the adequacy of the advice and
support it receives from internal audit.

2.3.3

Internal audit is provided by Eastern Internal Audit Services, with the Chief Audit Executive
responsible for ensuring the internal audit activity is undertaken in accordance with the
definition of internal auditing, the code of ethics and the standards.

2.3.4

Senior management are responsible for ensuring that internal control, risk management and
governance arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing the Local Authority.
Accountability for responding to internal audit rests with senior management who either accept
and implement the recommendations, or formally reject it. Any advice that is rejected will be
formally reported.

3

Key Relationships and Position in the Organisation

3.1

The standards require the terms ‘Chief Audit Executive’, ‘Board’ and ‘Senior Management’ to
be defined in the context of the governance arrangements in each public sector organisation
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in order to safeguard the independence and objectivity of internal audit. The following
interpretations are applied within Eastern Internal Audit Services.
3.2

Chief Audit Executive

3.2.1

The Chief Audit Executive is based at South Norfolk Council and provides the Head of Internal
Audit role to all consortium members with the exception of South Norfolk Council.
At South Norfolk Council, the Chief Audit Executive undertakes the Head of Governance role,
administratively reporting to the Assistant Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer). Due to
extra responsibilities undertaken and the Internal Audit Manager currently finalising
qualifications, the Head of Internal Audit role here is undertaken by a contractor to ensure that
independence is safeguarded.

3.2.2

The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Board and administratively to the Section
151 Officer or Section 17 Officer at all other members of the consortium.

3.2.3

The Head of Internal Audit also has a direct line of reporting and unfettered access to the Chief
Executive, the Senior Management Team at each Local Authority and the Chair of the Board
at each Local Authority. The Head of Internal Audit is also supported by the Internal Audit
Manager.

3.2.4

The delivery of the Annual Audit Plans and any specified ad-hoc assignments is provided by
an external contractor, TIAA ltd from 1 April 2015. The Chief Audit Executive manages this
contract with support from the Internal Audit Manager.

3.3

Board

3.3.1

In the context of overseeing the work of Internal Audit at each Local Authority, the ‘Board’ will
be the Audit Committee (or equivalent) of the Local Authority, which has been established as
part of the governance arrangements. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are discharged
through each of the Local Authority’s Constitution’s and explicitly referred to in each terms of
reference.

3.3.2

This functional reporting includes;
 Approving the audit charter, audit strategy and risk based annual plans;
 Receiving regular reports on the outcomes of internal audit activity and performance;
 Receiving regular reports on management action in relation to agreed internal audit
recommendations;
 Receiving the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of Internal Audit, alongside a
conclusion as to the effectiveness of internal audit;
 Overseeing External Assessments of the Internal Audit Service, at least once every 5
years.

3.3.3

Internal Audit work closely with the chair and members of the Audit Committee to facilitate and
support their activities, part of which includes facilitating a self- assessment and providing
training.

3.4

Senior Management

3.4.1

‘Senior Management’ is those individuals responsible for the leadership and direction of the
organisation, and are responsible for specific aspects of internal control, risk management and
governance arrangements. There is effective liaison between internal audit and senior
management to ensure that independence remains, and provides for a critical challenge.
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3.4.2

The Head of Internal Audit or Internal Audit Manager meets regularly with the Section 151
Officer or Section 17 Officer to ensure organisational awareness is maintained, to discuss
progress with the agreed Internal Audit Plan and to maintain a good working relationship.
These arrangements facilitate discussions in relation to the current and emerging risks and
issues to ensure that the internal audit plan of work remains reflective and also responds as
required.

3.5

External Audit

3.5.1

Regular liaison is maintained with External Audit to consult on audit plans, and to discuss
matters of mutual interest. The external auditors have the opportunity to take account of the
work of internal audit where appropriate.

3.6

Other Internal Audit Service Providers

3.6.1

Where appropriate internal audit will liaise with other internal audit providers, where shared
arrangements exist. In such cases, a dialogue will be opened with the Chief Audit Executive
to agree a way forward regarding the auditing of such shared services. This is to ensure an
efficient and effective approach, and enable reliance on each other’s outcomes. Where formal
arrangements are entered into a protocol will be determined and agreed by both Chief Audit
Executives.

3.6.2

Internal audit will also co-operate with all external review and inspection bodies that are
authorised to access and evaluate the activities of the Local Authority, to determine
compliance with regulations and standards. Assurances arising from this work will be taken
into account where applicable.

4

Rights of Access

4.1

Internal audit, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and
information, is authorised to have the right of access to all records, assets, personnel and
premises and has authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers
necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. This access is full, free and unrestricted and is set out in
each Local Authority’s Constitution.

4.2

Such access shall be granted on demand and shall not be subject to prior notice, although in
principle, the provision of prior notice will be given wherever possible and appropriate, unless
circumstances dictate otherwise.

5

Objective and Scope

5.1

The provision of assurance services is the primary role of Eastern Internal Audit Services, thus
allowing the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual audit opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Local Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control,
together with reasons if the opinion is unfavourable.

5.2

Internal audit will also provide consultancy services, at the request of management. These
reviews are advisory in nature and generally performed to facilitate improved governance, risk
management and control. This work may contribute to the annual audit opinion.

5.3

Whichever role / remit is carried out by internal audit the scope is to be determined by internal
audit, through discussions with senior management, however this scope will not be unduly
bias nor shall it be restricted.
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5.4

A risk based Strategic Internal Audit Plan will be developed each year to determine an
appropriate level of risk based audit coverage required to generate an annual audit opinion.
The plan will be derived from risk assessments, discussions with Senior Management and
Audit Committee taking prior year’s assurance results into account.

5.5

Each audit review will be designed to provide evidence based assurance over the
management of risk and controls within that area. The results of each review will be shared
with management so that any required improvements can be actioned to restore satisfactory
systems of internal control.

5.6

It is management’s responsibility to control the risk of fraud and corruption; however internal
audit will be alert to such risks in all the work that is undertaken. In addition, the Head of
Internal Audit is either responsible for, or is consulted on, related policy and strategy. These
include for example; Counter Fraud, Corruption, Anti-Bribery, Whistleblowing, Anti-Money
Laundering and includes the related promotion and training for officers and councillors.

5.7

Through the contract in place with TIAA Ltd there are other services that can be provided,
these include: fraud investigations, grant certification and digital forensics.
6

Independence and Objectivity

6.1

Internal Audit must be sufficiently independent of the activities that are audited to enable an
impartial, unbiased and effective professional judgement. All internal auditors working within
Eastern Internal Audit Services, annually confirm their adherence the Code of Ethics, which
sets out the minimum standards for performance and conduct. The four core principles are
integrity, objectivity, confidentiality and competency.

6.2

As contractors the TIAA Internal auditors have no operational responsibility or authority over
any of the activities which they are required to review. They do not engage in any other activity,
which would impair their judgement, objectivity or independence.

6.3

The Head of Internal Audit has overall responsibility for the management and strategic
direction of the Internal Audit Service. At South Norfolk Council there are additional
responsibilities that fall outside of internal auditing. These include;









Monitoring Officer
Democratic Services
Legal Services
Freedom of Information
General Data Protection Regulation
Risk Management
Procurement
Health and Safety
Safeguards exist to limit any impairments that may occur to the independence and objectivity
at South Norfolk Council. The Internal Audit Manager assumes responsibility for the daily
management, progress reporting and quality assurance of any internal audit work carried out
by the contractor and does not have any involvement in the above mentioned activities.
In line with the PSIAS requirements, until the Internal Audit Manager is CMIIA qualified, the
Head of Internal Audit role at South Norfolk Council will be provided by a contractor
responsible for presenting the Annual Audit Opinion. The Head of Internal Audit will continue
to provide the Annual Audit Opinion for all other consortium members.
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6.4

If the independence or objectivity of the Head of Internal Audit is impaired, or appears to be,
the details of the impairment will be disclosed to the Internal Audit Manager and / or senior
management. The nature of the disclosure will depend upon the impairment.

7

Professional Standards

7.1

The Internal Audit Service and all Internal Audit staff operate in accordance with all mandatory
guidance within the PSIAS including the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the Standards and Definition of Internal Auditing. Internal
Auditors also have regard for the principles contained within the Standards of Public Life.

8

Internal Audit Resources

8.1

The Head of Internal Audit will be professionally qualified (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and
have wide ranging internal audit management experience to enable them to deliver the
responsibilities of the role.

8.2

The Head of Internal Audit is supported by the Internal Audit Consortium Manager in ensuring
the Internal Audit Service has access through the contract to a team of staff who have the
appropriate range of knowledge, skills and experience to deliver the audit service.

9

Audit Planning

9.1

The Head of Internal Audit, supported by the Internal Audit Manager develops a strategy,
alongside a strategic and annual internal audit plan, using a risk based approach.

9.2

The Internal Audit Strategy provides a clear direction for internal audit services and creates a
link between the Charter, the strategic plan and the annual plan.

9.3

The annual internal audit plan of work, developed as per the Internal Audit Strategy, is derived
using a risk based approach, discussed with Senior Management and approved by the Audit
Committee. The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for the delivery of the internal audit plan,
which will be kept under regular review and reported to the Audit Committee.

10

Audit Reporting

10.1

On conclusion of each assurance review included within the annual internal audit plan, a report
will be provided to management giving an opinion on the adequacy of controls in place to
manage risk. This report will provide an assurance level and associated recommendations to
ensure that risks are appropriately addressed.

10.2

Management can choose not to accept / implement the recommendations raised, in all
instances this will be reported through to the Audit Committee, especially in instances whereby
there are no compensating controls justifying the course of action.

10.3

A Progress Report is periodically presented to the Audit Committee which includes the
Executive Summary of all final reports, any significant changes to the approved plan and the
performance of the contractor relative to completing the agreed plan.

10.4

A Follow Up Report is also periodically produced for the Audit Committee showing
management progress against the implementation of agreed recommendations arising from
internal audit assurance reports. The Internal Audit Team will verify and obtain evidence to
demonstrate recommendation completion from responsible officers.
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10.5

An Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion is produced for Senior Management and the
Audit Committee following the completion of the annual audit plan each financial year.

10.6

This report includes a summary of all Internal Audit work carried out, details of
recommendations that have been implemented by management and the Annual Opinion.

10.7

The Annual Opinion is based on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Local
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control during the financial year,
together with reasons if the opinion is unfavourable. This opinion is reached by considering
the results from assurance reviews undertaken throughout the year.

10.8

The report also highlights any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) and the results of the review of the effectiveness of internal
audit.

10

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

11.1

The standards require a quality assurance and improvement programme to be developed that
covers all aspects of internal audit; including both internal and external assessments.

11.2

If an improvement plan is required as a result of the internal or external assessment, the Head
of Internal Audit or Internal Audit Manager will coordinate appropriate action and report this to
Senior Management and the Audit Committee, as part of the annual report and opinion.

11.3

Internal Assessment

11.3.1 Internal assessment includes the ongoing monitoring of the performance of the contractor
through the performance measures. These form a key part of service management of the
contract and are subject to quarterly reporting to the Internal Audit Manager for review.
11.3.2 On conclusion of audit reviews a feedback form is provided to the key officer identified during
the audit process. Outcomes are reviewed and relevant improvements discussed with the
contractor.
11.3.3 The standards also require periodic self-assessment in relation to the effectiveness of internal
audit, the detail and outcomes of which are then forwarded to the Section 151 Officer or
Section 17 Officer for their independent scrutiny, before the summary of which is provided to
the Audit Committee as part of the annual report and opinion. This information enables the
Committee to be assured that the internal audit service is operating in accordance with best
practice.
11.4

External Assessment

11.4.1 External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified,
independent assessor or assessment team from outside the Organisation. This can be in the
form of a full external quality assessment that involves interviews with relevant stakeholders,
supported by examination of the internal audit approach and methodology leading to the
completion of an independent report, or a validated self-assessment, which the Internal Audit
Manager compiles against the PSIAS assessment tool, which is then validated by an external
assessor/team. The full external quality assessment is the chosen option for Eastern Internal
Audit Services.
11.4.2 An external assessment will:
 Provide an assessment on the internal audit function’s conformance to the standards;
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Assess the performance of the internal audit activity in light of its charter, the
expectations of the various boards and executive management;
Identify opportunities and offer ideas and counsel for improving the performance of the
internal audit activity, raising the value that internal audit provides to the organisation;
and
Benchmark the activities of the internal audit function against best practice.

11.4.3 In January 2017 Eastern Internal Audit Services was fully assessed by the Institute of Internal
Auditors. The conclusion of the review was:
The internal audit team fully meet most of the Standards, as well as the Definition, Core Principles
and the Code of Ethics which form the mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors’
International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), the globally recognised standard for quality
in Internal Auditing. This is described as “Generally Conforms”. It means that the internal audit team
may state in its audit reports that the work “has been performed in accordance with the IPPF”
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APPENDIX 2 – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY
EASTERN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
BRECKLAND AND SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCILS
INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY FOR 2019/20
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Internal Audit Strategy is a high-level statement of;
 how the internal audit service will be delivered;
 how internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit
charter;
 how internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities; and
 how the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed.
The provision of such a strategy is set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the
standards).

1.2

The purpose of the strategy is to provide a clear direction for internal audit services and creates
a link between the Charter, the strategic plan and the annual plan.

2.

How the internal audit service will be delivered

2.1

The Role of the Head of Internal Audit, Internal Audit Manager and contract management is
provided by South Norfolk Council to; Breckland, Broadland, North Norfolk, South Holland and
South Norfolk District Councils, Great Yarmouth Borough Council and The Broads Authority.
All Authorities are bound by a Partnership Agreement.

2.2

The delivery of the internal audit plans for each Authority is provided by an external audit
contractor, who reports directly to the Head of Internal Audit and managed by the Internal
Audit Manager. The current contract is with TIAA Ltd, and commenced on 1 April 2015, for an
initial period of 5 years.

3.

How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit
charter

3.1

Internal Audit objective and outcomes

3.1.1

Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add
value and improve the Authority’s operations. It helps the Authority accomplish its objectives
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of
risk management, control and governance processes.

3.1.2

The outcomes of the internal audit service are detailed in the Internal Audit Charter and can
be summarised as; delivering a risk based audit plan in a professional, independent manner,
to provide the Authority with an opinion on the level of assurance it can place upon the internal
control environment, systems of risk management and corporate governance arrangements,
and to make recommendations to improve these provisions, where further development would
be beneficial.

3.1.3

The reporting of the outcomes from internal audit is through direct reports to senior
management in respect of the areas reviewed under their remit, in the form of an audit report.
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The Governance and Audit Committee for each Council and the Section 151 Officer also
receive:
 The Audit Plans Report, which is risk based and forms the next financial year’s plan of
work;
 The Progress Reports which provide summaries of the work achieved throughout the
year and the individual opinions awarded on conclusion of reviews;
 The Follow Up Reports which detail the level of management action taken in respect
of agreed internal audit recommendations; and
 The Annual Report and Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control.
3.2

Internal Audit Planning

3.2.1

A risk-based internal audit plan (RBIA) is established in consultation with senior management
that identifies where assurance and consultancy is required.

3.2.2

The audit plan establishes a link between the proposed audit areas and the priorities and risks
of the Authority taking into account:
 Stakeholder expectations, and feedback from senior and operational managers;
 Objectives set in the strategic plan and business plans;
 Risk maturity in the organisation to provide an indication of the reliability of risk
registers;
 Management’s identification and response to risk, including risk mitigation strategies
and levels of residual risk;
 Legal and regulatory requirements;
 The audit universe – all the audits that could be performed; and
 Previous IA plans and the results of audit engagements.

3.2.3

In order to ensure that the internal audit service adds value to the Authority, assurance should
be provided that major business risks are being managed appropriately, along with providing
assurance over the system of internal control, risk management and governance processes.

3.2.4

Risk based internal audit planning starts with the Authority’s Business Plan, linking through to
the priority areas and the related high-level objectives. The focus is then on the risks, and
opportunities, that may hinder, or help, the achievement of the objectives. The approach also
focuses on the upcoming projects and developments for the Authority.

3.2.5

The approach ensures; better and earlier identification of risks and increased ability to control
them; greater coherence with the Authority’s priorities; an opportunity to engage with
stakeholders; the Committee and Senior Management better understand how the internal
audit service helps to accomplish its objectives; and this ensures that best practice is followed.

3.2.6

The key distinction with establishing plans derived from a risk based internal audit approach
is that the focus should be to understand and analyse management’s assessment of risk and
to base audit plans and efforts around that process.

3.2.7

Consultation with the Section 151 Officer and Senior Management takes place through
specific meetings during which current and future developments, changes, risks and areas of
concern are discussed and the plan amended accordingly to take these into account.

3.2.8

The outcome of this populates a strategic internal audit plan, and the resulting annual internal
audit plan, which are discussed with and approved by the Executive Management team prior
to these being brought to the respective Governance and Audit Committee. In addition,
External Audit is also provided with early sight of the plans.
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3.3

Internal Audit Annual Opinion

3.3.1

The annual opinion provides Senior Management and the respective Governance and Audit
Committee with an assessment of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s
framework of governance, risk management and control.

3.3.2

The opinion is based upon:
 The summary of the internal audit work carried out;
 The follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action
as at financial year end;
 Any reliance placed upon third party assurances;
 Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS);
 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes;
o A statement on conformance with the standards and the results of any quality
assurance and improvement programme,
o the outcomes of the performance indicators and
o the degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of
Internal Audit.

3.3.3

In order to achieve the above internal audit operates within the standards and uses a risk
based approach to audit planning and to each audit assignment undertaken. The control
environment for each audit area reviewed is assessed for its adequacy and effectiveness of
the controls and an assurance rating applied.

4.

How internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities

4.1

In addition to the approach taken as outlined in section 3.2 (Internal Audit Planning), which
ensures that the service links to the organisations objectives and priorities and thereby through
the risk based approach adds value, internal audit also ensure an awareness is maintained of
local and national Issues and risks.

4.2

The annual audit planning process ensures that new or emerging risks are identified and
considered at a local level. This strategy ensures that the planning process is all
encompassing and reviews the records held by the Authority in respect of risks and issue logs
and registers, reports that are taken through the Authority Committee meetings, and through
extensive discussions with senior management.

4.3

Awareness of national issues is maintained through the contract in place with the external
internal audit provider through regular “horizon scanning” updates, and annually a particular
focus provided on issues to be considered during the planning process. Membership and
subscription to professional bodies such as the Institute of Internal Auditors and the CIPFA
on-line query service, liaison with External Audit, and networking with, all help to ensure
developments are noted and incorporated where appropriate.

5.

How internal audit resource requirements have been assessed

5.1

Through utilising an external audit contractor the risk based internal audit plan can be
developed without having to take into account the existing resources, as you would with an inhouse team, thus ensuring that audit coverage for the year is appropriate to the Authority’s
needs and not tied to a particular resource.

5.2

That said a core team of staff is provided to deliver the audit plan, and these staff bring with
them considerable public sector knowledge and experience. These core staff can be
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supplemented with additional staff should the audit plan require it, and in addition specialists,
e.g. computer auditors, contract auditor, fraud specialists, can be drafted in to assist in
completing the internal audit plan and focusing on particular areas of specialism.
5.3

All audit professionals are encouraged to continually develop their skills and knowledge
through various training routes; formal courses of study, in-house training, seminars and
webinars. As part of the contract with TIAA Ltd the contractor needs to ensure that each
member of staff completes a day’s training per quarter.

Page 16
of 24
Page
124

APPENDIX 3 – STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
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APPENDIX 4 – ANNUAL INTENAL AUDIT PLAN
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Agenda Item 9.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Executive Director - Commercialisation (S151)

To:

Governance and Audit Committee Thursday, 14 March 2019

(Author:

Ellie Stacey Financial Control Manager)

Subject

Financial Statements 2018/19 - Accounting Policies

Purpose:

To review and agree the Accounting Policies for inclusion in the Financial
Statements 2018/19

Recommendation(s):
1) That Governance and Audit Committee review and agree the Accounting Policies for
2018/19 at Appendix A.
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Within the Financial Statements, the Council discloses the accounting policies it has
applied to all material balances and transactions. Unless there are major changes to
accounting rules and regulations, accounting policies do not change significantly between
years, which enables the Statements to be comparable from one year to the next.

1.2

This report presents the proposed accounting policies to be adopted for the 2018/19
financial year. The policies are prepared in line with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting 2018/19 (the Code).

1.3

It is good practice to consider and agree the accounting policies in advance of the
production and approval of the draft accounts, so this report will become an annual review
by the Governance and Audit Committee.

1.4

There have been two major areas of change within the Code in 2018/19:



IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments

The Code contains provisions for transitional arrangements which only require adjustments
to 1 April 2018 opening balances rather than a full prior year restatement.
IFRS 15 is not expected to have any impact on the Council’s accounts.
IFRS 9 will mean changes in the classification and measurement of financial assets, and a
new model for recognising impairment of these.
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1.5

The majority of the accounting policies in Appendix A have not changed from 2017/18, the
main changes made are:





2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure – updated to reflect the wording from the
CIPFA Guidance Notes regarding recognition of income when the performance
obligations in the service contract have been met. For example, once a licence has
been granted, the Council is not required to do anything further regarding the
granting of the licence until it expires and is renewed, although it can span more
than one financial year. In this case, the income should be accounted for in its
totality at the point of granting the licence.
9. Financial Instruments – policy amended to reflect the changes to IFRS 9
applicable from 1 April 2018.
18. Overheads and Support Services – policy amended to reflect the Council’s
policy of not recharging these costs to service segments within the Financial
Statements. This is in line with the quarterly monitoring reports to Cabinet.

We are currently awaiting the release of the template accounting policies and disclosure
notes from our external treasury advisors, Link Asset Services. Once received, these will
be reviewed against the draft accounting policies, and any required adjustments will be
made.
1.6

The unaudited Financial Statements will be presented to Governance and Audit Committee
on 30 May 2019. The accounting policies will be included within the Statements, and any
minor changes made during the Statements’ production process will be agreed with the
S151 Officer and highlighted to the Committee on this date.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

That Governance and Audit Committee review and agree the Accounting Policies for
2018/19 at Appendix A.

2.2

That Governance and Audit Committee review and make changes before agreeing the
Accounting Policies for 2018/19 at Appendix A.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

It is good practice to consider and agree the Accounting Policies in advance of the
production and approval of the draft accounts.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

By agreeing these policies early it assists with the early closure timetable that Local
Authorities work to.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS
In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection;
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales;
Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be
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implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.
5.1
5.1.1
6.0

Financial
The policies at Appendix A underpin the Council's Statement of Accounts in line with the
Code.
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

N/A.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy

Background papers:-

CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice 2018/19 and supporting
Guidance Notes

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Ellie Stacey, Financial Control Manager (CPBS)
01775 764648
Ellie.stacey@cpbs.com

Key Decision:

N

Exempt Decision:

N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Accounting Policies 2018/19
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APPENDIX A – ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. General Principles
The Financial Statements summarise the Council’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year
and its position at the year end of 31 March 2019. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which require the
accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices
primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Financial Statements is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.
2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:







Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision
of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the
service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are not carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet due to their immateriality.
Expenses in relation to services received, including services provided by employees,
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made.
Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract.
Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount, where considered material, is
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors
is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.
4. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
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current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where
a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
5. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:




depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off
amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from
revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.
6. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf
of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council
tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate
fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of
council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing
authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and
rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than
predicted.
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the Council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations
determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General
Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts,
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.
7. Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an expense
for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made
for the cost of holiday entitlements, or any form of leave e.g. time off in lieu, earned by
employees but not taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is
charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs for a restructuring.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Balance to be charged with the amount
payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits
and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at
the year end.
Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by Lincolnshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.
The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates,
etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.
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Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of x.x% (2.6%
in 2017/18), based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds.
The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:
 quoted securities – current bid price
 unquoted securities – professional estimate
 unitised securities – current bid price
 property – market value.
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Cost comprising:





current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned
this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
services for which the employees worked
past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the
Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the
period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

Remeasurements comprising:



the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net
defined benefit liability – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension’s liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as
an expense.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance and
Housing Revenue Account Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to
the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to
the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that
there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits
for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance
that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General
Fund and Housing Revenue Account of being required to account for retirement benefits on
the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Page 140

Discretionary Benefits
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.
8. Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Financial Statements
are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:



those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
– the Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect such events
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the
Financial Statements are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Financial
Statements.
9. Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.
For the long term borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable plus accrued interest; and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for
the year according to the loan agreement.
The Council has provided a guarantee in relation to the liabilities of Compass Point Business
Services, based on 37% of any outstanding liabilities, in the event that the Company should
cease trading. Details can be found in the Joint Operations note (note xx).
Financial Assets
Financial Assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:




amortised cost
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not
take the form of a basic debt instrument).
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based
on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest)
and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
Expected Credit Loss Model
The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost, or where relevant FVOCI, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit
loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial
part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was
initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased
significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.
The Council has issued three loans to its subsidiary, Welland Homes Limited, and has
assessed lifetime expected losses for these loans on a collective basis. The Council relies on
past due information and calculates losses based on lifetime credit losses for all loans more
than 30 days past due.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they
arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
For Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss, monthly
dividend/distribution income receivable is credited to the Financial and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Financial assets that are measured at FVOCI are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income shall be recognised in other comprehensive
expenditure and taken to the financial instruments revaluation reserve, except for impairment
gains or losses until the financial asset is derecognised or reclassified.
Where financial assets are measured at FVPL or FVOCI, the fair value measurements are
based on the following techniques:



instruments with quoted market prices – the market price
other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow
analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:




Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.

10. Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:



the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ringfenced
revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied,
it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
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reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to
fund capital expenditure.
11. Heritage Assets
The extent of the Council’s holdings of heritage assets is limited. Heritage assets are held to
help increase the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Council’s history and
local area. Heritage assets are recognised and measured, including the treatment of
revaluation gains and losses, in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property,
plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to
heritage assets as detailed below. The Council’s heritage assets fall into two categories; Civic
Regalia and Works of Art, and Archaeological Sites, Smallholdings and other Land and Sites
of Special Interest and are accounted for as follows:
Civic Regalia and Works of Art:


Civic regalia and Tulip paintings – insurance value; valued by an external valuer

Archaeological Sites, Smallholdings and other Land and Sites of Special Interest:



Chain Bridge Forge (formerly Blacksmith’s shop) – current use; valued by an external
valuer
Nature reserve – Historic Cost

Heritage assets not recognised on the Council’s Balance Sheet:


Community Beacon, Gas Wharf, Pill box, HMS Hornet bell and model of HMS Taku
submarine – not included on the Balance Sheet as the cost of obtaining valuations
outweighs the benefit to the users of the statements.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Council’s general policies on impairment – see item 19 in this summary
of significant accounting policies. Depreciation is not charged as the assets are deemed to be
held in perpetuity. Should any heritage assets be disposed of, the proceeds are accounted for
in accordance with the Council’s general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant
and equipment.
12. Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events e.g. software licences, is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Council.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are carried at amortised cost. The
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Depreciation is
calculated on the following basis:


Computer software and licences – straight line basis
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Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
the amortisation charge is not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance or
Housing Revenue Account Balance. It is therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance
and Housing Revenue Account Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted
to the Capital Adjustment Account.
13. Interest in Companies and Other Entities
The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and require it to prepare group accounts. In the
Council’s own single entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are
recorded as financial assets at cost.
14. Joint Operations
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.
South Holland has joint control with East Lindsey District Council over Compass Point
Business Services (East Coast) Ltd, a company established in 2010 to provide ‘back office’
services to both Councils.
The Council recognises on its Balance Sheet an appropriate share of its rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities and debits and credits the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement with its share of expenses incurred and income it earns from the
activity of the Company.
15. Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However,
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts
Reserve.
16. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers
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both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.
The Council has no finance lease commitments as at 31 March 2019.
The Council as Lessee - Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent free period at
the commencement of the lease).
The Council as Lessor - Operating Leases
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the relevant line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis
over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
17. Material Items of Income or Expense
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council’s financial performance.
18. Overheads and Support Services
Following revisions to the Accounting Code, the cost of overheads and support services are
not charged to service segments, within the Financial Statements, in accordance with the
Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. However, they are
apportioned to comply with the requirements of various government returns.
19. Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assets potential
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to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising;



the purchase price
any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the authority.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:





infrastructure assets, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated
historical cost
dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social
housing (EUV-SH)
surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest
and best use from a market participant’s perspective
all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV)

Where there is no market based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of
an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services where they arise from the reversal of a loss
previously charged to a service.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:



where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:



where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains)
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets
that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:




Dwellings and other buildings – straight line allocation over the life of the property as
estimated by the valuer
Vehicles, plant and equipment – straight line allocation over the life of the asset, as
advised by a suitably qualified officer
Infrastructure – straight line allocation.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.
Materiality levels have been assessed and a materiality level of £0.5m for major components
has been applied. Council dwellings are separated into their principal components, which are
depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset
held for sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease
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to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation or revaluations that would have been
recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable amount at the
date of the decision not to sell.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet, whether Property, Plant and Equipment or assets held for sale, is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain
or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance
of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new
capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow. Receipts
are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue
Account Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax or housing rents, as the
cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital
financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
20. Fair Value Measurement
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties, and some of its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:



in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s Financial Statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:




Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the authority can access at the measurement date
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

21. Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council has an obligation, and are measured at
the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation,
taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required, or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made, the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party, this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation.
22. Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
23. Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
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Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.
24. Reserves
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingences. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balance.
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate
service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council tax for the
expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.
25. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.
26. VAT
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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Agenda Item 10.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:

Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To:

Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 14 March 2019

(Author:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject

Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose:

To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:
a) That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues
for discussion; and
b) That items for consideration within the Work Programme for the forthcoming 2019/20
municipal year, detailed at Appendix A, be agreed.
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2

Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, halfyearly or quarterly.

1.3

In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4

Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit
Committee. It lays out all remaining meeting dates for the 2018/19 municipal year.
Alongside each of these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a
regular basis together with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory,
and the frequency with which it is considered.

1.5

Regular items have been transferred from the 2018/19 municipal year to the appropriate
meeting dates for the new municipal year of 2019/20. Contributors are requested to
confirm that the reports required, and the meeting dates on which they are to be reported,
are correct.

1.6

It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.7

The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a
future meeting, and any one-off issues.

Page 153

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2

To do nothing.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant
information.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Constitution & Legal

5.1.1

Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the
author, there are none arising out of this report. However, the Work Programme should
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2

Risk Management

5.2.1

Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author,
there are none. However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk
issues.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None.

Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number
Email:

Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
01775 764454
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:
Exempt Decision:

No
No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee
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APPENDIX A
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2018/19 and 2019/20
Agenda item

Author

Purpose and whether mandatory

Frequency

14 March 2019

Audit Plan

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory
Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit

To update Committee on progress of
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan
2019/20

Internal Audit

Annual Internal Audit Workplan Mandatory approval

Annual

Follow up report on Internal Audit
recommendations

Internal Audit

Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Financial Statements 2018/19
Accounting Policies

Section 151 Officer

Not mandatory, but good practice.

Annual

Q3 2018-19 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter ?)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

To update the Committee on issues
which may have an impact on the
organisation

Quarterly

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress
Report 2018-19
To May or July 2019 meeting. If May,
not to July. Move to July if necessary.

Internal Audit

To update Committee on progress of
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting
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Date of Meeting

30 May 2019

Date of Meeting
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25 July 2019

Agenda item

Author

Purpose and whether mandatory

Frequency

Follow up report on Internal Audit
recommendations
To May or July 2019 meeting. If May,
not to July. Move to July if necessary.

Internal Audit

Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Annual Report and Opinion (report on the
past year) 2018-19
To May or July 2019 meeting. If May,
not to July. Move to July if necessary.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit opinion to support draft
Annual Governance Statement
Mandatory

Annual

Pre-Audit 18-19 Financial Statements,
including narrative report

Section 151 Officer

To approve financial statements prior
to release to External Audit.
Mandatory

Annual

Draft Annual Governance Statement
2018-19 (appendix to the Pre-Audit 201819 Financial Statements report)

Section 151 Officer

Approval
Mandatory

Annual

Annual Treasury Management Review

Section 151 Officer

To comply with Treasury
Management Strategy
Mandatory

Annual

Q4 2018-19 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter ?)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

To update the Committee on issues
which may have an impact on the
organisation

Quarterly

ISA 260 Report 18/19 (previously known
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

Mandatory report to those charged
with Governance

Annual

Date of Meeting

24 October 2019
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Agenda item

Author

Purpose and whether mandatory

Frequency

Approval of Annual Governance
Statement, for inclusion with the
Council’s published financial statements
and approval of the audited 18/19
financial statements.

Section 151 Officer

Mandatory – approval required.

Annual

Q1 2019-20 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter ?)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

To update the Committee on issues
which may have an impact on the
organisation

Quarterly

SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2018/19

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit

To update Committee on progress of
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit
recommendations

Internal Audit

Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Governance and Audit Committee Self
Assessment

Internal Audit

For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 19/20

Section 151 Officer

To comply with Treasury
Management Strategy, reporting
requirements.

Half-yearly

Date of Meeting

16 January 2020

Page 158
12 March 2020

Agenda item

Author

Purpose and whether mandatory

Frequency

Q2 2019-20 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter ?)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

To update the Committee on issues
which may have an impact on the
organisation

Quarterly

Grant Claims 18/19

External Audit
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit

To update Committee on progress of
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit
recommendations

Internal Audit

Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision
Policy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy 20/21

Section 151 Officer

Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management
Strategy and approve Prudential
Indicators

Annual

Q3 2019-20 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Local Government Audit Committee
Briefing (Quarter ?)

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

Quarterly

Audit Plan

External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

To update the Committee on issues
which may have an impact on the
organisation
External Audit Plan – Mandatory
Approval

Annual

Date of Meeting

Page 159

Agenda item

Author

Purpose and whether mandatory

Frequency

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit

To each
meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan
2020/21

Internal Audit

To update Committee on progress of
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.
Annual Internal Audit Workplan Mandatory approval

Follow up report on Internal Audit
recommendations

Internal Audit

Not mandatory, but part of
Governance role.

To each
meeting

Financial Statements 2019/20
Accounting Policies

Section 151 Officer

Not mandatory, but good practice.

Annual

Q4 2019-20 Risk Report

Ross Bangs/Corey
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not
mandatory

To each
meeting

Annual

The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:


The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.
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